
City of Seguin 
	

TPDES Permit No. WQ00102770o3 

INTERIM EFFLUENT umnAnoNs AND MONITORING REQUIREMENTS 
	

Outfall Number om, 

Effluent Characteristic 
	

Discharge Limitations 
	

Min. Self-Monitoring Requirements 

Daily Avg 

mg/1  

Lethal and Sublethal Whole Effluent Toxicity (WET) limits 	Report 
(Parameter 22414)2  
Ceriodaphnia dubia 
(7-day chronic NOECI) 

Lethal and Sublethal Whole Effluent Toxicity (WET) limits 	Report 
(Parameter 22414)2  
Pimephales promelas 
(7-day chronic NOEC1) 

Lethal and Sublethal Whole Effluent Toxicity (WET) limits 	53% 
53% (Parameter  22414)2  
Ceriodaphnia dubia 
(7-day chronic NOEC) 

Lethal and Sublethal Whole Effluent Toxicity (WET) limits 	53% 
53% (Parameter  22414)2  
Pimephales promelas 
(7-day chronic NOE0) 

Daily Max 	Report Daily Avg. & Daily Max. 
mg/1 	Measurement 	Sample Type 

Frequency 

Report 	1/quarter 	Composite 

Report 
	1/quarter 	Composite 

53% 
	

1/quarter 	Composite 

53% 	1/quarter 	Composite 

The NOEC is defined as the greatest effluent dilution at which no significant effect is demonstrated. A significant effect is defmed 
as a statistically significant difference between a specified effluent dilution and the control for toxicity (lethal or sublethal effects, 
whichever is specified). 

The WET limits become effective on September 5, 2016. 
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City of Seguin 	 TPDES Permit No. WQ001027003 

FINAL EFFLUENT LIMITATIONS AND MONITORING REQUIREMENTS 	 Outfall Number cool 

1. During the period beginning upon the date of discharge from the new outfall location (see Attachment A) and lasting through date of 
expiration, the permittee is authorized to discharge subject to the following effluent limitations: 

The annual average flow of effluent shall not exceed 2.13 MGD, nor shall the average discharge during any two-hour period (2-hour peak) 
exceed 3,0 oo gpm. 

Effluent Characteristic Discharge Limitations Min. Self-Monitoring Requirements 
Daily Avg 7-day Avg 	Daily Max Single Grab Report Daily Avg. & Daily Max. 

mg/1 (lbs/day) mg/1 mel mg/1 Measurement Frequency Sample Type 

Flow, MGD Report N/A Report N/A Continuous To ali7ing 
Meter 

Biochemical Oxygen Demand 20 (355) 30 45 65 Two/week Composite 
(5-day) 

Total Suspended Solids 20 (355) 30 45 65 Two/week Composite 

E. coli, colony forming units 
or most probable number per 
loci ml 

126 N/A 399 N/A One/week Grab 

2. The effluent shall contain a chlorine residual of at least 1.0 mg/1 after a detention time of at least 20 Minutes (based on peak flow) and 
shall be monitored daily by grab sample at each chlorine contact cha.mber. The permittee shall dechlorinate the chlorinated effluent to 
less than 0.1 mg/1 chlorine residual and shall monitor chlorine residual daily by grab sample after the dechlorination process. An 
equivalent method of disinfection may be substituted only with prior approval of the Executive Director. 

3. The pH shall not be less than 6.o standard units nor greater than 9.0 standard units and shall be monitored once per week by grab 
sample. 

4. There shall be no discharge of floating solids or visible foam in other than trace amounts and no discharge of visible oil. 

5. Effluent monitoring samples shall be taken at the following location(s): Following the final treatment unit. 

6. The effluent shall contain a minimum dissolved oxygen of 2.0 mg/1 and shall be monitored twice per week by grab sample. 

7. The annual average flow and maximum 2-hour peak flow shall be reported monthly. 
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TPDES PERMIT NO. WQ0010277001 
[For TCEQ office use only - EPA I.D. 
No. TX0022365] 

TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 
P.O. Box 13087 

Austin, Texas 78711-3087 

This is a renewal that replaces TPDES 
Permit No. WQ0010277001 issued 011 
April 29, 2010. 

PERMIT TO DISCHARGE WASTES  
under provisions of 

Section 402 of the Clean Water Act 
and Chapter 26 of the Texas Water Code 

City of Seguin 

whose mailing address is 

205 North River Street 
Seguin, Texas 78155 

is authorized to treat and discharge wastes from the Walnut Branch Wastewater Treatment 
Facility, SIC Code 4952 

located at 101 East Klein Street, in Seguin, in Guadalupe County, Texas 78155 

directly to the Guadalupe River Below Comal River in Segment No. 1804 of the Guadalupe River 
Basin 

only according to effluent limitations, monitoring requirements and other conditions set forth in 
this permit, as well as the rules of the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ), the 
laws of the State of Texas, and other orders of the TCEQ. The issuance of this permit does not 
grant to the permittee the right to use private or public property for conveyance of wastewater 
along the discharge route described in this permit. This includes, but is not limited to, property 
belonging to any individual, partnership, corporation, or other entity. Neither does this permit 
authorize any invasion of personal rights nor any violation of federal, state, or local laws or 
regulations. It is the responsibility of the permittee to acquire property rights as may be 
necessary to use the discharge route. 

This permit shall expire at midnight, February 1, 2020. 

ISSUED DATE: March 13, 2015 
(0----& A  

For the Cotnmission 
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City of Seguin 	 TPDES Permit No. WQ0010277001 

EFFLUENT LIMITATIONS AND MONITORING REOTIIREMENTS 	 Outfall Number 001 

1. During the period beginning upon the date of issuance and lasting through the date of expiration the permittee is authorized to discharge 
subject to the following effluent limitations: 

The annual average flow of effluent shall not exceed 4.9 million gallons per day (MGD); nor shall the average discharge during any two-
hour period (2-hour peak) exceed 8,333 gallons per minute (gpm). 

Effluent Characteristic Discharge Limitations Min. Self-Monitoring Requirements 

Daily Avg 
mg/1 (lbs/day) 

7-day Avg 	Daily Max 
mg/1 	mg/1 

Single Grab 
mg/1 

Report Daily Avg. & Daily Max. 
Measurement Frequency 	Sample Type 

Flow, MGD Report N/A Report N/A Continuous Totalizing 
Meter 

Carbonaceous Biochemical 10 (409) 15 25 35 Two/week Composite 
Oxygen Demand (5-day) 

Total Suspended Solids 15 (613) 25 40 60 Two/week Composite 

Ammonia Nitrogen 3 (I-23) 6 10 15 Two/week Composite 

E. coil, CFU or MPN/100 ml 126 N/A 399 N/A One/week Grab 

2. The effluent shall contain a chlorine residual of at least 1.0 mg/1 after a detention time of at least 20 minutes (based on peak flow) and 
shall be monitored daily by grab sample at each chlorination basin. The permittee shall dechlorinate the chlorinated effluent to less than 
0.1 mg/1 chlorine residual and shall monitor chlorine residual daily by grab sample after the dechlorination process. An equivalent 
method of disinfection may be substituted only with prior approval of the Executive Director. 

3. The pH shall not be less than 6.0 standard units nor greater than 9.0 standard units and shall be monitored once per week by grab 
sample. 

4. There shall be no discharge of floating solids or visible foam in other than trace amounts and no discharge of visible oil. 
5. Effluent monitoring samples shall be taken at the following location(s): Following the final treatment unit. 
6. The effluent shall contain a minimum dissolved oxygen of 6.0 mg/1 and shall be monitored twice per week by grab sample. 
7. The annual average flow and maximum 2-hour peak flow shall be reported monthly. 
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Service Area Total Acre 7329.51 

3 5 LUE/AC Assumption 

245 gpd/LUE assumption 

Peaking Factor based upon "Water Supply and Waste Water Disposal" - 1st Edition Wiley & Sons 

woo Inflow/Infiltration 

Planning Basin Area LUEs ADF PDWF PWF 

PB 1 666.40 2332.4 571,438 1,857,174 2,523,574 

PB 2 274.02 959.1 234,972 763,659 1,037,679 

PB 3 437.32 1530.6 375,002 1,218,756 1,656,076 

PB 4 456.67 1598.3 391,595 1,272,682 1,729,352 

PB 5 562.82 1969.9 482,618 1,568,509 2,131,329 

PB 6 286.11 1001.4 245,339 797,353 1,083,463 

PB 7 304.99 1067.5 261,529 849,969 1,154,959 

PB 8 278.46 974.6 238,779 776,033 1,054,493 

PB 9 691.12 2418.9 592,635 1,926,065 2,617,185 

PB 10 795.68 2784.9 682,296 2,217,461 3,013,141 

PB 11 247.16 865.1 211,940 688,804 935,964 

PB 12 478.26 1673.9 410,108 1,332,851 1,811,111 

PB 13 336.62 1178.2 288,652 938,118 1,274,738 

PB 14 188.50 659.8 161,639 525,326 713,826 

PB 15 1189.78 4164.2 1,020,236 3,315,768 4,505,548 

PB 16 135.60 474.6 116,277 377,900 513,500 

Totals 7329.51 25653.29 6,285,055 20,426,428 27,755,938 

Population (P) 	5013 

Peak Factor 3.243959 

18+  
Peak Factor = 

4+ VP 
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Sanitary Sewer Flow in Pipe n=0.013 

Pipe Size Min Slope Max Slope Min Flow @ 0 4% 	GPD 

10 

12 

0 25% 

0.20% 

6 23% 

4.88% 

	

505.5 	727,898 

	

822.0 	1,183,642 

15 0 15% 3 62% 1,490.3 	2,146,086 

18 0 11% 2 83% 2,423.5 	3,489,772 

21 0.09% 2.30% 3,655.6 	5,264,072 

24 0.08% 1.93% 5,219.2 	7,515,657 

27 0.06% 1.65% 7,145.1 	10,289,013 

30 0.055% 1.43% 9,463.1 	13,626,794 

36 0 045% 1.12% 15388.0 22,158,669 

42 0.036% 0.91% 23211.6 33,424,771 

PB 1 	2,666,433 

PB 2 	1,096,423 

PB 3 	1,749,827 

PB 4 	1,827,251 

PB 5 	2,251,984 

PB 6 	1,144,798 

PB 7 	1,220,341 

PB 8 	1,114,188 

PB 9 	2,765,344 

PB 10 	3,183,715 

PB 11 	988,949 

PB 12 	1,913,638 

PB 13 	1,346,901 

PB 14 	754,236 

PB 15 	4,760,607 

PB 16 	542,570 

Total 	29,327,202 

ASSUMPTIONS  

AVG SLOPE ACROSS TRUNK MAINS ARE 0.4% 

GRAV SEWERS UTILIZE 80% OF TOTAL PIPE AREA 

COLLECTION SYSTEM SIZED OFF PWWF 

TREATMENT PLANTS SIZED OFF ADF 

FLOWS BASED ON TOTAL BASIN AREAS (INCL FLOODPLAIN, NEIGHBORHOODS, ETC) 

WWTP SOUTH TRUNK MAINS ALTERNATE 

BEGIN CP AREA FLOW PREV FLOW PIPE FLOW 	ENDING CP 	REQ SIZE 

1,114,188 o 1,114,188 	CP 5 12" 

1,220,341 o 1,220,341 	CP 5 15" 

CP 5 1,144,798 2,334,529 3,479,327 	CP 6 18" 

2,251,984 16,255,958 18,507,942 	CP 4 36" 

CP 6 1,827,251 3,479,327 5,306,578 	CP 7 24" 

CP 4 1,749,827 18,507,942 20,257,769 	CP 7 36" 

1,096,423 0 1,096,423 	RB LS 12" 

2,666,433 o 2,666,433 	WWTP 21" 

PLANT 	DESIGN FLOW  

WWTP S 	2,801,272 

WWTP N 	3,483,782 

TOTAL 	 6,285,055 

AREA 

PB 8 

PB 7 

PB 6 

PB 5 

PB 4 

PB 3 

PB 2 

PB 1 

Gravity Trunk Main Sizing Calculations -Treatment Option A 

WWTP SOUTH TRUNK MAINS 

AREA 	BEGIN CP AREA FLOW PREV FLOW PIPE FLOW 	ENDING CP 	REQ SIZE 

PB 8 1,114,188 o 1,114,188 CP 5 12" 

PB 7 1,220,341 o 1,220,341 CP 5 15" 

PB 6 	CP 5 1,144,798 2,334,529 3,479,327 CP 6 18" 

PB 5 2,251,984 0 2,251,984 CP 4 18" 

PB 4 	CP 6 1,827,251 3,479,327 5,306,578 CP 7 24" 

PB 3 	CP 4 1,749,827 2,251,984 4,001,810 CP 7 21" 

PB 2 1,096,423 0 1,096,423 RB LS 12" 

PB 1 2,666,433 0 2,666,433 WWTP 21" 

WWTP INLET 	CP 7 0 9,308,388 9,308,388 WWTP 27" 

WWTP NORTH TRUNK MAINS 

AREA 	BEGIN CP AREA FLOW PREV FLOW PIPE FLOW 	ENDING CP 	REQ SIZE 

PB 16 542,570 o 542,570 LS/CP 1 10" 

PB 15 	CP 1 4,760,607 542,570 5,303,177 CP 2 24" 

PB 14 754,236 754,236 LS/C P 2 12" 

PB 13 	CP 2 1,346,901 6,057,412 7,404,313 WWTP 24" 

PB 12 	CP 3 1,913,638 5,949,059 7,862,696 WWTP 27" 

PB 11 988,949 o 988,949 WWTP 12" 

PB 10 3,183,715 o 3,183,715 CP 3 18" 

PB 9 2,765,344 o 2,765,344 CP 3 18' 

1 0 3 



Guadalupe County Major Thoroughfare Plan (Map 10-2012) 
Legend 

County Line 

Guadalupe Co. Visioned New Location Roadways 

San Marcos Existing 

San Marcos Proposed 

Interstate 

- Expressway 

- - - - Expressway - Proposed 180 R.O.W. 

- Principal Arterial 

Principal Arterial - Proposed 90' to 180° R.O.W. 

Parkway 

Parkway - Proposed 90' to 220' R.O.W. 

	 Minor Arterial 

- Minor Arterial - Proposed 90' to 120' R.O.W. 

Major Collector 

Major Collector - Proposed 70' to 150' R.O.W. 

Minor Collector 

Minor Collector - Proposed 60' to 120' R.O.W. 

Municipalities 

Extra Territorial Jurisdiction 

Go Vowned New Locabon Roadways 

Name ROW 
1 	F511103-.10 Games. 120 
2 	55148,FIA 775 Connector 120 
3 	5,54.05 Connect. 120 
4 	Lower Seg,ROFIN 1515 05,0o 100 
5 	SH130..11117 Carnes. 120 

Produced 10-15-2012 
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ATTACHMENT B' 
Need for Service Summary 



Need for Service Summary 

As noted in Attachment IN, GBRA is tasked with protecting the water resources of the 

Guadalupe River basin. By providing wastewater service to the proposed area, GBRA can 

manage water quality within reaches and watersheds of the Guadalupe River basin. 

By granting the proposed amended CCN area, GBRA can provide central wastewater service in 

an economical and environmental friendly manner. This will eliminate the need for new 
development to install costly septic systems, and will eventually provide existing residents the 

opportunity to abandon their existing septic system. GBRA has a history of environmental 

stewardship and is excited to continue that effort in the proposed additional service area. As 
noted in GBRA's Wastewater Master Plan, the soils in the area are undesirable for onsite septic 

systems due to low percolation rates. 

For the last several months, GBRA has met with the surrounding municipalities including the 
City of New Braunfels, New Braunfels Utilities (NBU), City of Seguin, Crystal Clear Special Utility 

District, Springs Hill Water Supply Corporation, and Green Valley Special Utility District. These 

local municipalities are in support of GBRA providing wastewater service to this area. Copies of 
the Letters of Support are provided in Attachment 'C of this application. 
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ATTACHMENT 'V 
Letters of Support 



That the City of New Braunfels supports GBRA's request for expansion of their 
wastewater/sewer CCN into the subject area as depicted 	e attached in 

Passed and approved this the 26th  of June, 2017. 

IPA 
law maiii6.4%, 

Patrick A n, ity Secretary 

ATTEST: 

RESOLUTION 2017-R 	 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS, 
TEXAS, IN SUPPORT OF THE GUADALUPE BLANCO RIVER AUTHORITY (GBRA) 
APPLYING TO THE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION OF TEXAS FOR 
AUTHORIZATION TO EXPAND THEIR CERTIFICATE OF CONVENIENCE AND 
NECESSITY (CCN) TO PROVIDE CENTRALIZED WASTEWATER SERVICES IN 
AREAS OF NEW BRAUNFELS CITY LIMITS AND ETJ ON THE EAST SIDE OF THE 
GUADALUPE RIVER/LAKE DUNLAP. 

WHEREAS, the subject expansion area, as depicted on the attached map, is a rapidly 
developing area between New Braunfels and Seguin; and 

WHEREAS, the subject expansion area is not presently served by centralized wastewater 
services; and 

WHEREAS, centralized wastewater services are an important tool for communities to 
manage growth, development and water quality; and 

WHEREAS, centralized wastewater services are an efficient, environmentally sound, 
and sprawl-reducing alternative to individual septic systems and private package sewer treatment 
plants; and 

WHEREAS, GBRA's plans for expansion into the subject area do not include sewer 
lines crossing either above, through or under the Guadalupe River/Lake Dunlap; and 

WHEREAS, with approval of GBRA's request by the PUC of Texas current and future 
residents and business owners in the subject area will have more efficient and reliable 
wastewater services. 

NOW THEREFOR_E, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEW 
BRAUNFELS, TEXAS: 

Barron Casteel, Mayor 
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Ver .  truly yours, ri  

t 

ne Schnuriger, General Marin+ 

SPRINGS RILL WATER SUPPLY CORP. 
May 30, 2017 

Darrell Nichols 
Guadalupe-Blanco River Authority 
933 E. Court St. 
Seguin, Texas 78155 

P.W.S. ID. NO. 
0940022 

P.O. 90X 29 
9510 S. 123 BYPAM 
SEGUIN, =AS 79156- 

Phone: 830-379-7683 
Fe= 930-379-0539 
Welnite: 
InnwApringshill.org  

RE: 	GBRA's application to amend its sewer certificate of convenience and necessity 

Dear Mr. Nichols: 

On behalf of Springs Hill Water Supply Corporation, we want to offer our support of the 
Guadalupe Blanco River Authority's decision to file an application at the Public Utility 
Commission to amend and expand its sewer certificate of convenience and necessity. It is my 
understanding that a significant portion of this new area that will be incorporated into GBRA's 
sewer CCN boundaries overlaps with Springs Hill WSC's current water CCN boundaries; and, 
thu"s, the membership of Springs Hill is impacted by this application. 

Local governments and other retail water and sewcr service providers should endeavor to 
work together and install/operate utility service systems to ultimately benefit their end user 
customers, and GBRA's decision to grow its retail sewer service area and provide landowners 
with the opportunity to obtain centralized sewer service is certainly a benefit to Springs Hill's 
affected members. Once the sewer CCN amendment application is approved, Springs Hill's 
retail water service members located within this overlapping area could also become retail sewer 
service customers of GBRA. 

Springs Hill looks forward to working with GBRA so that both entities can provide their 
respective retail service to the end user in an efficient manner. Springs Hill's billing and field 
Staff are ready, willing, and well versed in coordinating billing and meter reading activities with 
separate retail sewer service providers. 

If you have any questions regarding how we can work together with billing matters or 
otherwise, do not hesitate to contact me at (830) 379-7683. 
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ATTACHMENT D' 
Written Description of Service Area 



General Description and Location of the Proposed 7345.2-Acre Additional GBRA Sewer CCN 
Area 

The proposed 7345.2-acre addition to Guadalupe-Blanco River Authoritys (GBRA) Sewer CCN (#20892) 
falls within the extents of Guadalupe County and within the extents of the Springs Hill Water Supply 
Corporation's (WSC) Water CCN (#10666). No portion of the proposed additional area falls within an 
existing Sewer CCN. The additional area will extend from the eastern portion of GBRA's existing Sewer 
CCN from the Guadalupe River adjacent to The Bandit Golf Club, northeast to the area between FM 1.05 
(Huber Road) & FM 140 (Schwarzlose Road). 

Starting from the existing eastern boundary of GBRA's Sewer CCN at the Guadalupe River and moving 
clockwise, the additional 7345.2-acre area will be bound by Elley Lane to the north until the north right-
of-way lane for State Highway 46 where it will then be bound by the City of New Braunfels Utilities 
(NBU) Water CCN (#10677) to the east/northeast and follow that boundary to the eastern most portion 
of NBU's Water CCN at FM 140. The new area then extends east approximately 7,900-LF to the Crystal 
Clears Water CCN (#10297) near the intersection of FM 105 & FM 142 (Dietert Road). The additional 
area will then be bound by Crystal Clears Water CCN approximately 6,950-LF South, then approximately 
2,730-LF East, then approximately 2,950-LF South to the intersection of Crystal Clears Water CCN and 
the City of Seguin's Sewer CCN (#20270). The additional area will then be bound by the City of Seguin's 
Sewer CCN to the south and southwest to the Guadalupe River at the starting point mentioned above. 
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DAMAWYE R 
LAND SURVEYING 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION 
FOR A 

77.960 ACRE TRACT OF LAND 

Being 77.960 acres of land situated in the City of New Braunfels, Guadalupe County, Texas, and 
being part of the William. H. Pate Survey No. 22, Abstract No. 259, and a part of the Sarah 
DeWitt, Survey No. 48, Abstract No. 359, Guadalupe County, Texas, and being out of 150.00 
acre tract of land described in Volume 4277, Page 743 of the Official Public Records of 
Guadalupe County, Texas and said 77.960 acre tract of land being more particularly described as 
follows: 

BEGINNING at a 1/2." iron pin found along the Northwesterly line of Klein Road, being the 
southerly corner of a One acre tract of land conveyed to Deborah Kraft in Volume 2648, Page 
798 of the Deed Records of Guadalupe County, Texas, and being the Southeasterly comer of this 
herein described 77.960 acre tract of land and the POINT OF BEGINNING; 

THENCE with the Northwest line of Klein Road, S 440  08 40" W a distance of 1311.45 feet to a 
1/2" iron pin found for the Southeasterly comer of Lot 4, Ashby Acres, as recorded in Volume 5, 
Page 141A of the Map and Plat Records of Guadalupe County, Texas and being the 
Southernmost corner of this herein described 77.960 acre tract of land; 

THENCE with the Northeasterly line of Lots 1, 2, 3, and 4 of said Ashby Acres, 
N 41° 12' 53" W a distance of 3305.77 feet to a 1/2" iron pin with cap stamped "DAM #5348 
PROP. COR." set for the Northerly corner of Lot 1, Ashby Acres, and in the Southeasterly line 
of a 8.296 acre tract of land conveyed to Arthur Jacobsen in Volume 1228, Page 91 of the 
Official Records of Guadalupe County, Texas, and being the Westernmost comer of this herein 
described 77.960 acre tract of land; 

THENCE with the Southeasterly line of said Arthur Jacobsen 8.296 acre tract of land, 
N 430  24' 29" E a distance of 321.32 feet to a 1/2" iron pin found for the Easterly corner of said 
Jacobsen 8.296 acre tract of land, and being the Northwesterly comer of this herein described 
77.960 acre tract of land; 

THENCE departing the Easterly comer of said Arthur Jacobsen 8.296 acre tract of land, and 
across said Laubach 150.00 acre tract the following calls: 

S 272  52' 50" E a distance of 54.43 feet to a 1/2" iron pin with cap stamped "DAM #5348 
PROP. COR." set for a comer; 

S 370  51' 57" E a distance of 72.97 feet to a 1/2" iron pin with cap stamped "DAM #5348 
PROP. COR." set for a comer; 

S 56° 28' 54 E a distance of 73.60 feet to a 1/2" iron pin with cap stamped "DAM #5348 
PROP. COR." set for a corner; 
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N 25° 28 22" E a distance of 136.63 feet to a 'A" iron pin with cap stamped "DAM 
#5348 PROP. COR." set for a corner, 

S 68° 27' 33" E a distance of 20.57 feet to a Y2" iron pin with cap stamped "DAM #5348 
PROP. COR." set for a comer; 

S 17° 36' 32 W a distance of 137.18 feet to a 'A" iron pin with cap stamped "DAM 
#5348 PROP. COR." set for a comer; 

S 78° 52' 58" E a distance of 74.00 feet to a Y2 " iron pin with cap stamped "DAM #5348 
PROP. COR." set for a comer; 

N 86° 25' 28" E a distance of 74.32 feet to a 'A" iron pin with cap stamped "DAM #5348 
PROP. COR." set for a corner; 

N 72° 10' 57" E a distance of 69.48 feet to a 'A" iron pin with cap stamped "DAM #5348 
PROP. COR." set for a comer; 

N 24° 08' 12" W a distance of 140.91 feet to a 'A" iron pin with cap stamped "DAM 
#5348 PROP. COR." set for a corner; 

N 65° 11' 40 E a distance of 53.04 feet to a 'A" iron pin with cap stamped "DAM #5348 
PROP. COR." set for a comer; 

With a curve to the right having an Arc Length of 7,46 feet, a Radius of 5.50 feet, a Delta 
Angle of 77° 41' 12, a Tangent length of 4.43 feet, and a Chord Bearing and Distance of 
S 750  57' 44" E, 6.90 feet, to a 'A" iron pin with cap stamped "DAM #5348 PROP. COR." set for 
a comer; 

With a reverse curve to the left having an Arc Length of 273.72 feet, a Radius of 330.00 
feet, a Delta Angle of 47° 31' 30, a Tangent length of 145.29 feet, and a Chord Bearing and 
Distance of S 60° 52' 53" E, 265.94 feet, to a Y2 " iron pin with cap stamped "DAM #5348 
PROP. COR." set for a comer; 

S 84° 38' 38" E a distance of 146.68 feet to a Y2 " iron pin with cap stamped "DAM #5348 
PROP. COR." set for a corner; 

With a non-tangent curve to the right having an Arc Length of 4.86 feet, a Radius of 
270.00 feet, a Delta Angle of 01° 01' 52, a Tangent length of 2.43 feet, and a Chord Bearing 
and Distance of S 84° 07' 42" E, 4.86 feet to a 'A" iron pin with cap starnped "DAM #5348 
PROP. COR." set for a corner; 

S 440  06' 13" W a distance of 153.81 feet to a 1/2  " iron pin with cap stamped "DAM 
#5348 PROP. COR." set for a comer; 

S 84° 38' 38" E a distance of 91.41 feet to a IA" iron pin with cap stamped "DAM #5348 
PROP. COR." set for a comer; 

With a non-tangent curve to the right having an Arc Length of 116.34 feet, a Radius of 
154.53 feet, a Delta Angle of 430  08' 14, a Tangent length of 61.08 feet, and a Chord Bearing 
and Distance of S 62° 47' 20 E, 113.61 feet, to a 'A" iron pin with cap stamped "DAM #5348 
PROP. COR." set for a corner; 

N 440  06' 13" E a distance of 120.00 feet to a 'A" iron pin with cap stamped "DAM 
#5348 PROP. COR." set for a comer; 
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S 450  53 47" E a distance of 230.00 feet to a 'A" iron pin with cap stamped "DAM #5348 
PROP. COR." set for a corner; 

and N 440  06' 13" E a distance of 236.18 feet to a 'A" iron pin with cap stamped "DAM #5348 
PROP. COR." set in the Southwesterly line of a 96.00 acre tract conveyed to Leonard Kraft in 
Volume 373, Page 254 of the Official Records, Guadalupe County, Texas and being the 
Northeasterly corner of this herein described 77.960 acre tract of land; 

THENCE with the Southwesterly line of said Leonard Kraft 96.00 acre tract, and continuing 
along the Southwesterly line of said Deborah Kraft 1.00 acre tract, S 450  55' 53" E a distance of 
2242.56 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing a 77.960 acre tract of land; 

Bearings based on the Texas State Plane Coordinate System, Texas South Central Zone (4204), 
N.A.D 1983. 

Surveyed on the ground this the 20th day of March, 2015. 

Drew A. Ma
4:

.
4 —7k  

Registered Professional Land Surve r No. 5348 
'MKS Firm Registration #10191500 
132 Caddell Lane 
New Braunfels, Texas, 78130 
MOE164 — Laubach South 77.960 AC 
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ATTACHMENT E' 
Location Map — Large Scale 
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ATTACHMENT 'F' 
Location Map Small Scale 7345.2 Acre Tract 
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ATTACHMENT G' 
Location Map — Small Scale 77.96 Acre Tract 
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ATTACHMENT H' 
Proposed Short Term Sewer Facilities Exhibit 
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ATTACHMENT 9' 
Proposed Long Term Sewer Facilities Exhibit 
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ATTACHMENT 'X 
TCEQ Inspection Report 



'Bryan W. Shaw, Ph.D., P.E., Chairman 
Toby Baker, Commissioner 
Jon Niermann, Commissioner 
Richard A. Hyde, P.E., Executive Director 

RECEIVED 

AUG 	2.016 

GI3RA - Seguin Office 

TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 
Protecting Texas by Reducing and Preventing Pollution 

July 29, 2016 

CERTIFIED MAIL 91 7199 9991 7036 0227 2220 
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Mr. Michael Urrutia 
Director of Water Quality Services 
GBRA Lake Dunlap 
933 E Court Street 
Seguin, Texas 78155-5819 

Re: 	Notice of Violation for Compliance Evaluation Investigation at: GBRA Lake 
Dunlap, 174 Century Ranch Road, New Braunfels, Comal County, Texas 
Regulated Entity No.: 102333820, TCEQ ID No.: WQ0011378001 

Dear Mr. Urrutia: 

On May 10, 2016, Ms. Patricia Blackwell and Mr. Chris Dziuk of the Te.xas Commission 
on Environmental Quality (TCEQ.) San Antonio Region Office conducted an 
investigation of the above-referenced regulated entity to evaluate compliance with 
applicable requirements for wastewater treatment. Enclosed is a summary which lists 
the investigation findings. During the investigation, some concerns were noted which 
were alleged noncompliances that have been resolved based on subsequent corrective 
action. In addition, certain outstanding alleged violations were identified for which 
compliance documentation is required. Please subnait to this office by August 29, 
2016 a written description of corrective action taken and the required documentation 
demonstrating that compliance has been achieved for each of the outstanding alleged 
violations. 

In the listing of the alleged violations, we have cited applicable requirements, including 
TCEQ rules. Please note that both the rules themselves and the agency brochure 
entitled Obtaining TCEQ Rules (GI 032) are located on our agency website at 
http://www.tceq.state.tx.us  for your reference. If you would like a hard copy of this 
brochure mailed to you, you may call and request one from either the San Antonio 
Region Office at 210-490-3096 or the Central Office Publications Ordering Team at 
512-239-0028. 

The TCEQ appreciates your assistance in this matter. Please note that the Legislature 
has granted TCEQ enforcement powers which we may exercise to ensure compliance 
with environmental regulatory requirements. We anticipate that you will resolve the 
alleged violations as required in order to protect the State's environment. If you have 
additional information that we are unaware of, you have the opportunity to contest the 
violations documented in this notice. Should you choose to do so, you must notify the 

TCEQ Region i3 • 1425o Judson Rd, • San Antonio, Texas 78233-4480 • 210-490-3096 • Fax :no-545-43n 

Austin Headquarters: 512-239-5000 • Meg texas.gov  • How is our customer service? tccq texas gov/customersurve) 
printed on recycled paper 
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Mr. Michael Urrutia 
Page 2 
July 29, 2016 

San Antonio Region Office within 10 days frorn the date of this letter. At that time, Ms. 
Lynn Bumguardner, Water Section Manager will schedule a violation review meeting to 

be conducted at a specified date and time. However, please be advised that if you 
decide to participate in the violation review process, the TCEQ may still require you to 
adhere to the compliance schedule included in the enclosed Summary of Investigation 
Findings until an official decision is made regarding the status of any or all of the 
contested violations. 

If you or members of your staff have any questions, please feel free to contact Ms. 
Patricia Blackwell in the San Antonio Region Office at 210-403-4065. 

Sincerely, 

Joy Thurston-Cook, Water Section Team Leader 
San Antonio Region Office 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

JTC/PB/adj 

Enclosure: Summary of Investigation Findings 
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Summary of Investigation Findings 

GBRA LAKE DUNLAP 	 investigation # 

174 CENTURY RANCH RD 	 Inv estanate: 05/10/2016 
NEW BRAUNFELS, GUADALUPE COUNTY, TX 78130 

Additional 1D(s): TX0025208 
WO0011378001 

OVTSTANDING ALLEGED VIOLATION(S) 
ASSOCIATED TO A NOTICE OF VIOLATION 

Track No: 605779 	Compliance Due Date: 08/29/2016 
30 TAC Chapter 305.125(5) 

L1C WQ0011378001, TPDES Permit 
Operational Requirements No.1 

Alleged Violation: 

Investigation: 1330291 Comment Date: 05/31/2016 

Failed to properly maintain the facility. Specifically, there was excessive vegetation on the 
facility fencing. The vegetation must be removed from the fence. 
Recommended Corrective Action: Submit documentation indicating that the excessive 
vegetation has been removed from the facility fence 

Track No: 605789 	Compliance Due Date: 08/29/2016 
30 TAC Chapter 305.125(6) 

L1C WQ0011378001, TPDES Permit No. WQ0011378001 
Operational Requirement No.1 

Alleged Violation: 
Investigation: 1330291 Comment Date 05(31/2016 

Failed to maintain the flow measurement device. Specifically, the weir crest was not level. At 
the time of the investigation, only about 30% of the weir had effluent flowing There was no 
flow over the remaining 70% of the weir. 

Recommended Corrective Action: The crest of a weir must be exactly level to ensure a 
uniform depth of flow. Submit documentation indicating that the weir has been leveled. 

Track No: 605793 	Compliance Due Date: 08/29/2016 
30 TAC Chapter 305.125(5) 
30 TAC Chapter 317.7(e) 

LIC WQ0011378001, TPDES Permit 
Operational Requirements No.1 

Alleged Violation: 
Investigation: 1330291 Comment Date 05/31/2016 

Failed to properly operate and maintain the facility. Specifically, there were no "Danger / No 
Trespassing" signs on the facility fence. 

Recommended Corrective Action: Provide documentation indicating that 'Danger / No 
Trespassincr signs are posted on the facility fence to verify compliance 

ALLEGED VIOLATION(S) NOTED AND RESOLVED 
ASSOCIATED TO A NOTICE OF VIOLATION 

Track No: 605784 
30 TAC Chapter 306.125(11)(B) 
Summary of Investigation FIndloga 

	
Page 1 of 2 
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GBRA LAKE DUNLAP 	 investigation # 1330291 
30 TAC—Chapter 305.128(11)(C) 

Alleged Violation: 
Investigation 1330291 	 Comment Date: 05/31/2016 

Failed to make all sludge docurnents readily available to TCEQ personnel. Specifically, the 
2015 annual sludge report was not available at the time of the investigation. 
Recommended Corrective Action: The required information shall be retained at the facility 
site and/or shall be readily available for review by TCEQ representatives for a period of five 
years Submit copies of the 2015 annual sludge report to verify compliance. 
Resolution: On 05/31/2016 documentation was submitted to resolve the violation. See 
attachment #3 

ADDITIONAL ISSUES 

Description 
Are adequate safeguards maintained to 
prevent the discharge of untreated or 
inadequately treated wastes during electrical 
power failure by means of altemate power 
sources, standby generators and/or retention 
structures? 
Were region collected samples compliant 
with the perrnit limits (except pH, DO and Cl2 
minimum)? 

Additional Comments 
The generator runs the disinfection unit only. A 
new generator has been purchased, but has not 
been installed The new generator will run the 
entire plant A copy of the purchase order for the 
new generator is attached to the report. 
(Attachment 3) 
A follow up record review will be conducted once 
the results of the TCEQ San Antonio Region grab 
samples are received for Total Phosphates. 
Compliance with the effluent monitoring limitations 
will be venfied at the time Samples results for 
CBOD5, TSS. NH3N and E. coli were compliant 
with permit requirements 

Summary of Investigation Findings 	 Page 2 of 2 
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From: 	 Joel Heideke 
To: 	 Patricia Blackwell (Patncia Blackwell)tceo.texas.gov) 
Subject: 	 Dunlap WWTP 
Attachments: 	120021,usif 

 

      

Good morning Patricia, 

Here is a copy of the purchase order and Dunlap annual sludge report. The generator will be 

delivered in July l am told. l am currently looking for a contractor for the leveling of the weir on the 

clarifier. The signs are being constructed, they will be installed as soon as we get them. Our in house 

crew will be cleaning the fences, this has been scheduled but the rain has been an issue. It will 

probably be a month or so because crew is spilling water from Canyon lake. If you have any 

questions please feel free to call 830-305-0480. 

Thank you and have a great day! 

Joel 
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PROCESS CONTROL CALIBRATION 
188 OAKSIDE, UNIVERSAL CITY, TX. 78148 

PHONE (210) 658-0783 

CERTIFICATE OF CALIBRATION 

CERTIFICATE NO: 04851 

CUSTOMER: GUADALUPE-BLANCO RIVER AUTHORITY 

LOCATION: DUNLAP 

STREET: 933 EAST COURT 

CITY: SEGUIN 

STATE: TX. ZIP CODE: 78155-5819 

CUSTOMER ID: 155 

CONTACT: MR. JOEL H1EDEKE 

PHONE: (830) 379-5822 

FAX: (830) 401-0991 

MANUFACTURER: MILLTRONICS 

MODEL: OCM III 

SERIAL*: 870303101X2 

TYPE: FLOW METER 

ID*: 0641 

CUSTOMERS #: 

INPUT: FLOW 

OUTPUT: DISPLAY & 4-20 ma 

MAX.ERROR: +/- 1/4 INCH 

TEMPERATURE: 88 F 

HUMIDITY: 66% 

AS FOUND: IN TOLERANCE 

AS LEFT: IN TOLERANCE 

TEST PROCEDURE: MANUFACTURER 

SPECIFICATIONS: MANUFACTURER 

CALIBRATED BY: NWF 

CALIBRATION DATE: 5/18/2015 

DUE CALIBRATION: 5/18/2016 

INTERVAL: 12 MOs. 

TS MANUFACTURER TS MODEL 
	

TS SERIAL 
	

TS TYPE 
	

TS ID 
STARRETT 	 C404R-48 787 N/A 

	
RULER 
	

TS10 
FLUKE 
	

8220006 
	

PROCESS METER 
	

TS15 

TS CALIBRATION DATE TS DUE CALIBRATION 
8/25/2014 	 8/25/2015 
3/3/2015 	 3/3/2016 

AS FOUND DATA 
INPUT 

MEASURED READ 
1.25 IN 	1.20 IN 

OUTPUT 
OUTPUT MEASURED 

4ma 	4.00ma 
20ma 	19.99ma 

AS LEFT DATA 
INPUT 

MEASURED READ 
1.25 IN 	1.20 IN 

OUTPUT 
OUTPUT MEASURED 

4ma 	4.00ma 
20ma 	19.99ma 

THE TEST STANDARDS USED ARE TRACEABLE TO THE STANDARDS MAINTAINED BY THE NATIONAL INSTITUTE 
OF STANDARDS AND TECHNOLOGY (NIST). 

SIGN1TURE: DATE:  -27   
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PROCESS CONTROL CALIBRATION 

CUSTOMER: GUADALUPE-BLANCO RIVER AUTHORITY 

LOCATION: DUNLAP 

STREET: 933 EAST COURT 

CITY: SEGUIN 

STATE: TX. ZIP CODE: 78155-5819 

CUSTOMER ID: 155 

CONTACT: MR. JOEL H1EDEKE 

PHONE: (830) 379-5822 

FAX: (830) 401-0991 

MANUFACTURER: MILLTRONICS 

MODEL: OCM III 

SERIAL #: 870303101X2 

TYPE: FLOW METER 

ID #: 0641 

CUSTOMERS #: 

INPUT: FLOW 

OUTPUT: DISPLAY & 4-20 ma 

MAX.ERROR: +/- 1/4 INCH 

TEMPERATURE: 77 F 

HUMIDITY: 79% 

TEST PROCEDURE: MANUFACTURER 

SPECIFICATIONS: MANUFACTURER 

CALIBRATION DATE: 5/16/2016 

DUE CALIBRATION: 5/16/2017 
INTERVAL 12 MOs. 

AS FOUND: IN TOLERANCE 

AS LEFT: IN TOLERANCE 

CALIBRATED BY: NWF 

TS MANUFACTURER TS MODEL 
STARRETT 	 C404R-48 787 
FLUKE 

TS TYPE 
RULER 
PROCESS METER 

TS SERIAL # 
N/A 
8220006 

TS 10 
TS10 
TS15 

TS CALIBRATION DATE 
8/25/2015 
3/3/2016 

TS DUE CALIBRATION 
8/25/2016 
3/3/2017 

AS FOUND DATA 
INPUT 

MEASURED READ 
2.25 IN 	2.12 IN 

THE TEST STANDARDS USED ARE TRACEABLE TO THE STANDARDS MAINTAINED BY THE NATIONAL INSTITUTE 
OF STANDARDS AND TECHNOLOGY (NIST). 

SIGNITURE: DATE 	  

OUTPUT 
OUTPUT MEASURED 

4ma 	4.00ma 
20ma 	20.00ma 

CERTIFICATE OF CALIBRATION 

166 OAKSIDE, UNIVERSAL CITY, TX. 78148 
PHONE (210) 658-0783 

CERTIFICATE NO: 05136 

AS LEFT DATA 
INPUT 

MEASURED READ 
2.25 IN 	2.12 IN 

OUTPUT 
OUTPUT MEASURED 

4ma 	4.00ma 
20ma 	20.00ma 
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Guadalupe-Blanco River Authority 
933 E. Court Street, Seguin, Texas 78155 

830-379-5822 • Fax 830-379-7478 
Purchase Order 

Purchase Order 

020 - 11101 
This order number must appear 
on all Invoices and packing  slips 

b: 	L. 7 P0142. GM Pr dorj  
'13o 141,511k,41 e'9D ¿Veit 	Pb  

At4,N T e KA) 	7g7  3 (0 

Date:  Fi ii,)opo 

Please Ship Prepaid To: 

mlfip tA) TP  
oil Ce4i  RAf4  Ro4q1  
N (4/ loloArreil lreo)  

Attn:  -070 foIti<0  

  

   

Itern Quantity Description 
_ 

14°' Budoehd Price Per Total 

1 l EA • Soo 	K w bitml 	Dr, veN 	Ks A 	GP 	9-Aiar _24 C,( 0)93 1)0 

All A-iit  
3 re. 

_ 
4 . 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 
i 

14 

15 

1 it 	_ TOTAL 90 'IA;  
Ptease direct coneWonaince regarding this order to the attention of the derson 
signed above. 

Íii   Approved by 	  Dale 	 

Recel t 
Items 

Date 	 By 	  

Mail Invoices in Duplicate to: 

Guadalupe-Blanco River Authority 
933 East Court Street, Seguin, Texas 78155 

The Guadalupe-Blanco River Authority Is a political sub-
division of the State of Texas and is exempt from payment of 
federal excise taxes and state and local sales taxes Please do 
not Include taxes in your billing. Exemption certificates will be 
furnished with payment. 

  

Quotations and Bids 
ForinternalVs6 CItty 

    

Account Classification 

Item No. 	 Code 

  

g0.4#-1.1 	Air  

  

     

013 mg &44 07 

Hy4:1583101 AP-1000-04;20 



Dunlaø Annual re ort 
Delivery Manifest * Spread Plant % Solids Depth/Ft. Depth " Dry Weight Field % Volume Mg/L Sludge , Dry/Ton/Acre 	cg  
10/28/2014 5015 11/4/2014 DUN 8.49 2.50 30 1850 1 0.50 84900 0.058,  
10/2/2014 5013 10/15/2014 DUN 9.18 2.50 30 2001 3 0.50 91800 0.063 
10/3/2014,  5014 , 10/15/2014 DUN 10.4 2.50 30 2266 3 0.50 104000 0.071 

219/2015 5018 2/11/2015 DUN 8.49 2.50 30 1850 1 0.50 84900 0.058 
11/22/2014 5016 12/2/2014 , DUN 8.05 2.50 30 1754 2 0.50 80500 0.055 
12/22/2014 5017 1/6/2015 DUN 7.5 2.75 33 1798 3 0.55 75000 0.056 
3/18/2015 5019 	. 3/19/2015 DUN 10.93 2.50 30 2382 2 0.50 109300 0.075 
4/20/2015 5020 5/1/2015 , DUN 9.81 2.50 30 2138 1 0.50 98100 0.067 
5/5/2015 5021 , 5/7/2015 , DUN 9.8 2.17 26 1851 1 0.43 woo 0.058 

6/22/2015 5022 7/8/2015 DUN 14.8 2.50 30 3225 3 0.50 148000 61 01 
8/26/2015 5023 7/8/2015 DUN 16 2.50 30 3487 	.. 3 0.50 180000 0.109 
7/7/2015 5024 7/8/2015 DUN 18.1 3.00 36 4733 3 0.60 181000 0.148 

7/10/2015 5025 7/13/2015 DUN ' 16 3.00 36 4184 3 0.60 160000 i5.1 3 1 
7/16/2015 5676 7/19/2015 DUN 17.3 3.00 36 4524 3 0.60 173000 ' 	0.142 
7/24/2015 5677 7/24/2015 DUN 17.2 3.00 36 4498 3 0.60 172000 0.141 

, 

, 

Total Dry lbs. 	42542 

Total Metric Tons 19.30 
Total Acres on Permit - 47.914 
Each Field is 	15.967 Acres 

Total in lbs. per Field 42542 lbs. 

Permit Numbers 

 

 

IlaunlaEWWTP  

  

  

W00011378001 
Total Loads 	15 	 FIELDS 
Total Tonnage 	21.271 	1,2 & 3 	Tons/ Acre 	0.444 



ATTACHMENT K' 
GBRNNBU Wholesale Agreements 



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

This Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") between the Guadalupe-Blanco River 
Authority ("GBRA") and New Braunfels Utilities ("NBU") (collectively, "the Parties") is 
acknowledged by the Parties on the date indicated on the last page of the MOU. The Parties 
recognize that this MOU is not a contract or binding agreement, but rather an acknowledgement 
by GBRA and NBU, respectively, of certain objectives with respect to GBRA's provision of 
water from sources owned or controlled by GBRA in the Guadalupe River Basin, including 
Canyon Reservoir, and NBU's provision of wholesale wastewater treatment service to GBRA, 
including treatment at NBU's Sam C. McKenzie, Jr. Water Reclamation Facility (the "McKenzie 
Planr). 

I. RECITALS 

WHEREAS, to address anticipated future shortages in water supply to meet increasing 
demand in the New Braunfels area, NBU filed an application with Texas Commission on 
Environmental Quality ("TCET) for new Water Use Permit No. 12469 (the "Permir), which, if 
issued, would authorize NBU to divert and reuse up to 9,408 acre-feet of its groundwater-based 
return flows discharged from three wastewater treatment plants in the Guadalupe River for 
Municipal, Industrial, and Agricultural use; 

WHEREAS, the Executive Director of the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
(the "TCET) has issued a draft permit; 

WHEREAS, GBRA requested a contested case hearing on the Permit, which the TCEQ 
granted on August 9, 2016, and was subsequently named a party to the contested case hearing on 
the Permit at the State Office of Administrative Hearings ("SOAH") on December 12, 2016; 

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into settlement negotiations in an effort to resolve the 
issues disputed in the contested case hearing, as well as others, and agreed to request a six-month 
continuance of the contested case hearing, which the SOAH Administrative Law Judges granted 
on February 23, 2017; 

WHEREAS, GBRA anticipates increased wastewater service demand in certain drainage 
basins outside of NBU's retail service area generally located east of the Guadalupe River along 
State Highway 46; 

WHEREAS, GBRA anticipates a corresponding need for wastewater treatment capacity 
to meet the increasing demand and has requested NBU provide wholesale wastewater treatment 
service to GBRA with capacity up to 2.5 million gallons per day ("MGD"); 

WHEREAS, GBRA is developing a water supply project that will produce and treat up to 
15,000 acre-feet of groundwater from the Carrizo Aquifer in Gonzales County and to deliver 
such groundwater to customers; 

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to enter into a mutual agreement that will establish a 
guaranteed source of raw water supply from GBRA to NBU, a guaranteed supply of available 
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wastewater treatment capacity available on a wholesale basis from NBU to GBRA, and 
resolution of disputed issues that will avoid the expense of a contested case hearing on the 
Permit; 

WHEREAS, this MOU outlines the general terms of the agreement in principle of the 
Parties to work together to identify and implement short-term and long-term water and 
wastewater supply options and availability; and 

WHEREAS, upon acknowledgement of this MOU, NBU intends to withdraw its 
application for the Permit and request dismissal of the pending hearing without prejudice under 
the applicable TCEQ regulations; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties expressly acknowledge the following understandings 
with respect to water and wastewater supply options in the Guadalupe River basin: 

II. UNDERSTANDINGS 

A. 	Wholesale Wastewater Treatment Service 

The Parties acknowledge that they will, in good faith, exercise all reasonable efforts to 
negotiate and enter into a formal, binding agreement with the following terms: 

1. NBU will provide wholesale wastewater treatment service of up to 2.5 MGD of 
the total 10 MGD capacity of its McKenzie Wastewater Treatrnent Plant that allows GBRA 
discretion to decide which drainage basins in the Guadalupe River Basin, outside of NBU's 
service area, will be developed based on NBU's wholesale wastewater service capacity; 

2. GBRA will pay to NBU $4,081.00 per living unit equivalent (LUE') for capital 
participation in existing facilities (the McKenzie Plant and related infrastructure), which will be 
calculated as a percentage of the actual as-built treatment capacity of the McKenzie Plant at the 
time of payment (the "Capital Participation Fee). GBRA will pay the Capital Participation Fee 
prior to service being provided to reserve capacity up to 25% of the actual as-built treatrnent 
capacity of the McKenzie Plant at the time of payment; 

3. For any future expansion of the McKenzie Plant, a new Capital Participation Fee 
per LUE payable by GBRA will be established and applied to any additional LUE connected to 
the expanded facility and served by the up to 2.5 MGD commitment; 

4. NBU will calculate a fixed total LUE for any future expansion based on hourly 
peak/daily peak capacity of the McKenzie Plant and any such commitment by or to GBRA shall 
not exceed 2.5 MGD; 

5. For purposes of illustration, based on existing McKenzie Plant capacity at the 
time of this acknowledgement (2.5 MGD), the capacity that is available to NBU to provide 
service to GBRA under the terms of this MOU (0.625 MGD, or 25 percent of 2.5 MGD) will 
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support 2,083 LUE, while 25 percent of the capacity of the McKenzie Plant when fully built out 
to permitted capacity (2.5 MGD of the permitted 10 MGD capacity) will support 8,333 LUE. 

6. In addition to the Capital Participation Fee, NBU will charge a monthly rate for 
actual wholesale wastewater service provided of $4.527 per 1,000 gallons of wholesale 
wastewater collected by NBU from GBRA; 

7. GBRA anticipates that it will establish a retail rate that will result in a customer 
rate that is no less than $7.80 per 1,000 gallons. To the extent allowed by regulators and to the 
extent allowed under applicable law, GBRA's customer rate will be greater than the rate charged 
by NBU to NBU's retail sewer customers in any wholesale wastewater agreement; 

8. GBRA will comply with the requirements and limitations of NBU's pretreatment 
program, including prescribed fees if sewage contributed by GBRA exceeds pretreatment 
parameters; and 

9. NBU will provide multiple delivery points for GBRA to deliver wastewater to 
NBU's system, which will be clearly and specifically designated in the final agreement, along 
with flow monitoring expectations and requirements for each delivery point. 

B. 	Water Supoly 

The Parties acknowledge that they will, in good faith, exercise all reasonable efforts to negotiate 
and enter into a formal, binding agreement with the following terms: 

1. The Parties will work together to identify and implement short-term and 
long-term water supply options for NBU's exclusive use; 

2. GBRA will work with NBU to identify temporary raw water options that could be 
available to NBU as needed to meet any municipal water supply needs, until additional long term 
water supply projects are developed; 

3. GBRA is developing up to 15,000 acre-feet per year of groundwater in Gonzales 
County (the "Gonzales County groundwatee) 

4. GBRA will develop the Gonzales County groundwater project to make water 
available to NBU, either treated water directly from the groundwater source or through raw 
water in Canyon Reservoir that is made available by the offset of the groundwater source, by 
2023 or earlier; 

5. The cost of the Gonzales County groundwater project will include fixed costs per 
acre foot for groundwater leases and fixed operating costs on a take-or-pay basis, debt service 
per acre foot for infrastructure related to the production, treatrnent, and delivery of the 
groundwater on a take-or-pay basis, and operation and maintenance costs of the facilities on a 
take-and-pay basis; 
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6. GBRA anticipates that all take-and-pay charges will comrnence when water 
deliveries commence. 

7. GBRA anticipates that all take-or-pay charges will commence one year after 
execution of an agreement with the exception of debt service which shall only commence when 
project debt is outstanding. 

8. GBRA will apply to the Texas Water Development Board ("TWDB") for funding 
from the State Water Implementation Fund of Texas ("SWIFT") program for financing the 
construction of the project, which will allow GBRA access to below-market interest rates or 
principal deferral for projects with capacity that will not be utilized for several years; 

9. GBRA intends to provide NBU and other primary project participants with 
TWDB financing options available at the time that best meets their long-term financing and cash 
flow needs. 

10. GBRA intends to provide NBU (and other primary project participants) the ability 
to structure the debt component of the water supply agreement based on NBU's needs within the 
parameters available from the TWDB; 

11. GBRA's application to the TWDB for SWIFT funding will be submitted before 
the deadline for SWIFT applications in 2018, and all contracts necessary for water supply 
between the Parties will be formally and finally executed before such deadline; 

12. GBRA's application to the TWDB for SWIFT funding will request that 
repayment of debt service not commence until a time concurrent with or immediately before 
scheduled construction completion of the project. 

13. GBRA's preliminary estimate for delivering 8,000 acre-feet of treated 
groundwater to NBU from a 15,000 acre-foot project is approximately $1,420 - $1,470 per acre-
foot with TWDB SWIFT financing. GBRA's preliminary estimate for making 8,000 acre-feet of 
raw water available to NBU from a 15,000 acre-foot project is approximately $1,350 - $1,400 
per acre-foot with TWDB SWIFT Financing. 

14. GBRA will provide consent if requested by NBU, as part of the water supply 
agreement, to NBU's subleasing of raw or treated water supply obtained from GBRA under the 
terms of the water supply agreement; and 

15. GBRA, in the water supply agreement, will make available first to NBU any 
additional long-term water supply options that come available from downstream of NBU for a 
period of not less than 30 years. 

C. 	TCEO Indirect Reuse Permit Hearing 

1. 	Upon execution of the agreement described in Section II.B. herein by both Parties, NBU 
shall withdraw its application to TCEQ for the Permit and to seek from SOAH and/or TCEQ 
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dismissal of the application without prejudice, and NBU shall take all actions required under 
applicable regulations to obtain such dismissal; 

2. NBU further agrees that, upon withdrawal of the above-referenced application, it will not 
file an application for indirect reuse of groundwater within the Guadalupe River Basin within the 
next 5 years without consent from GBRA; 

3. GBRA acknowledges that, after 5 years, NBU intends to file a new application with the 
TCEQ for an indirect reuse authorization to allow NBU to divert and for NBU to reuse all of its 
groundwater-based return flows discharged from the same wastewater treatment facilities 
identified in NBU's application for the Permit; 

4. The Parties agree that any future indirect reuse authorization application filed by NBU 
will be filed in full compliance with any law as it exists at the time the application is filed, 
including any law developed, created, or changed as a result of any legal proceedings relating to 
similar matters; 

5. GBRA agrees that, alter withdrawal of NBU's application under Paragraph II.C.2, GBR.A 
will not protest or otherwise oppose an application by NBU to the TCEQ for an indirect reuse 
authorization for diversion reuse solely by NBU of groundwater-based return flows discharged 
from the three wastewater treatment facilities identified in NBU's application for the Permit; and 

6. GBRA agrees to incorporate the agreement not to protest or oppose NBU's future 
indirect reuse authorization application into the terrns of the binding, formal agreement. 

GUADALUPE BLANCO RIVER 
	

NEW BRAUNFELS UTILITIES 
AUTHORITY 

Kevin Patteson 
General Manager / CEO 
Guadalupe-Blancy Rivy Authority 

Dated: 	9/3  / /7  

Opees4eAL-key.1: 

(4914  

Ian Taylor 
CEO 
New Braunfels Utilities 

Dated: 	Ct 15 1 i 1  	 
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Patrick Lackey 

From: 	 Alvin Schuerg <aschuerg@gbra.org> 
Sent: 	 Thursday, September 28, 2017 9:14 AM 

To: 	 Kevin Patteson; Darrell Nichols; Jonathan Stinson; Jeff McKee 
Cc: 	 Patrick Lackey 
Subject: 	 FW: Wastewater Service in Laubach Tract 

FYI — See below. 

I asked for a letter confirming that NBU did not oppose GBRA providing WW Service to the southern part of the Laubach 

Tract (Dunlap service area along Klein Rd). Instead Michael Short instead sent an e-mail confirming NBU's support for 

GBRA's service of that area as well as support for GBRA's intent to include the area in a CCN expansion. 

From: Michael Short [mailto:mshort@nbutexas.com]  
Sent: Thursday, September 28, 2017 7:30 AM 
To: Alvin Schuerg 
Subject: RE: Wastewater Service in Laubach Tract 

Alvin, 

Please accept this e-mail as a response to your request as described below and as documented in your letter August 

8th. NBU supports GBRA's action to move forward with providing the Laubach South Tract sewer service. In addition 

NBU also supports GBRA's incorporation of the tract into GBRA's CCN. 

tte Nitilli .4, 	Michael G. Short, P.E. ,.. 
t .. 

Chief Engineer Water Systems Engineering 
-4.• 	4:e 	P.O. Box 310289 

MillUZIMIC 	New Braunfels, TX 78131-0289 

II 	aillm mshortgnbutexas.coml 830.608.8970 

From: Alvin Schuerg [mailto:aschuerg@gbra.org1  

Sent: Friday, September 01, 2017 11:06 AM 

To: Michael Short <mshort@nbutexas.com> 

Subject: RE: Wastewater Service in Laubach Tract 

Outstanding, thanks for the update. 

From: Michael Short [mailto:mshort@nbutexas.com]  
Sent: Friday, September 01, 2017 10:54 AM 
To: Alvin Schuerg 
Subject: RE: Wastewater Service in Laubach Tract 

Alvin, 
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Yes I did receive. I am in favor I just need to craft a formal response and I will try and have that complete next week. I 

apologize for the delay. 

tti 

	

2•1111111111( 	New Braunfels, TX 78131-0289 

	

0 tri 	mshort@nbutexas.com  I 830.608.8970 

From: Alvin Schuerg [mailto:aschuerg@gbra.orgl  

Sent: Friday, September 01, 2017 10:51 AM 

To: Michael Short 

Subject: Wastewater Service in Laubach Tract 

Mike, I sent a letter over the first part of August related to GBRA's interest in providing wastewater service to the 

"southern" portion of Laubach tract of land which lies north of Klein Road across from Legend Pond. I was if you 

received the letter and if you and your staff have had an opportunity to discuss wastewater service in that area. If my 

memory serves me correctly, we had previously discussed NBU potentially serving the northern portion of the tract and 

GBRA serving the southern portion due to the topography of the land in that area. 

I would appreciate any information or update that you can provide. Thanks. 

M ichael G. Short, P.E. 

Chief Engineer Water Systems Engineering 

P.O. Box 310289 
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Governrnent Finance Officers Association 

Certificate of 
Achievement 
for Excellence 
in Financial 
Reporting 

Presented to 

Guadalupe-Blanco River Authority 

Texas 

For its Cornprehensive Annual 
Financial Report 

for the Fiscal Year Ended 

August 31, 2015 

•,0417, 
Executive Director/CEO 

7 

- 	GFOA Certificate of Achievement 
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The Guadalupe Valley Hydroelectric Division operates six "low hear hydroelectric plants in 
Guadalupe and Gonzales counties capable of producing 16 megawatts. All electricity produced by the 
division is delivered to the Guadalupe Valley Electric Cooperative (GVEC) for consumption principally 
within the river basin. The charge for the power delivered to GVEC includes a fixed monthly charge of 
$125,000 and an energy charge of 3.14r per kilowatt hour of energy produced. GV Hydro Division 
personnel are responsible for the operation and maintenance of the generating stations as well as the 
associated dams, lakes, ancillary equipment and adjacent properties. 

The Rural Utilities Division operates and maintains six wastewater treatment plants in Comal, 
Hays and Guadalupe counties. These small plants serve rural areas where septic tanks do not provide 
proper or safe wastewater disposal and the extension of wastewater services from nearby municipalities is 
not cost effective. The six wastewater plants include Canyon Park, Dunlap, Springs Hill, Northcliffe, 
Shadow Creek and Sunfield. The most recent of these wastewater treatment plant operations is the 
Sunfield Municipal Utility District's (MUD) Wastewater Treatment Plant. GBRA began operating this 
plant in Fiscal Year 2009 utilizing personnel from the nearby City of Buda and Shadow Creek wastewater 
plants that are also operated by GBRA. GBRA's operation of the Buda, Shadow Creek and Sunfield 
plants using the same personnel provides a cost effective means for GBRA to safely and properly meet 
their wastewater treatment needs of both the City and two MUDs. 

The development and operation of water supply sources and raw water delivery systems is the 
responsibility of the Water Resource Division. The division contracts with municipal, industrial and 
agricultural users throughout the river basin to provide a dependable supply of surface water. This 
division is anchored in the upper reaches of the river basin by Canyon Reservoir and in the lower reaches 
of the basin by the Guadalupe River Diversion Dam and Salt Water Barrier. Additionally, this division is 
responsible for GBRNs water quality program as well as the operation of a regional water quality 
laboratory located at the general office in Seguin. The regional water quality laboratory provides services 
to GBRA's other operations as well as to individuals, municipalities, industries and private entities 
throughout the region. Other operations recognized within the Water Resource Division are the Calhoun 
Canal System, the City of San Marcos Water Treatment Plant, the City of Buda Wastewater Treatment 
Plant, tfie Western Canyon Water Treatment Plant, and retail, treated water delivery and Wastewater 
treatment systems in Comal County. Included within these Comal County operations are the Comal 
Trace, Johnson Ranch, and Cordillera real estate developments and starting in FY 2015, the Singing Hills 
Wastewater Plant on behalf of the City of Bulverde. 

GBRA's Port La-vaca Water Treatment Plant Division operates and maintains a water treatment 
plant that supplies treated water to the City of Port Lavaca, the Calhoun County Rural Water Supply 
System, and the Port O'Connor Improvement District (I). The division, which commenced operation in 
1969, receives raw water from the Guadalupe River delivered through 20 miles of canals. GBRA then 
treats and disinfects the water to drinking water standards before delivering it to the City, Rural Water 
System, and ID. 

The Calhoun County Rural Water Supply Division began in 1974 and currently operates and 
maintains a treated water distribution system to supply approximately 1,407 homes and businesses 
located throughout a large portion of the unincorporated areas of Calhoun County. 

The Coleto Creek Division operates and maintains the Coleto Creek Reservoir located thirteen 
miles southwest of Victoria just off State Highway 59. The reservoir, which was completed and filled in 
1981, serves as a cooling pond for a coal-fired electric generating plant owned by Coleto Creek Power, 
LP. This division also operates and maintains recreation facilities that provide grounds for camping and 
picnicking as well as public access to the lake for fishing, swimming, and boating. 

Surface water from the San Marcos River is treated by the Luling Water Treatment Plant 
Division and delivered to the City of Luling and the City of Lockhart for distribution. The plant was 
constructed in 1978 and has a treatment capacity of 2.5 MGD. 
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the dam. This caused agricultural losses which when coupled with losses in agricultural support 
industries were in the billions of dollars. Fortunately, due to the effects of El Nino, rainfall during 2015 
and 2016 has resulted in reservoirs recovering to full or nearly full levels for much of the State. While 
this is a welcome change, the State as well as various regional water providers, have recognized the need 
to implement additional water management strategies identified in the State's regional water planning 
process. 

The Local Economy. GBRNs service area is geographically part of south central Texas. It 
stretches from the Texas Hill Country through the IH-35, IH10, and State Highway 130 Corridors and 
onto the Texas Gulf Coast. This geographic diversity provides economic diversity with a unique 
combination of agriculture, oil and gas, defense, high tech, higher education centers, tourism, seawater 
ports, and heavy industry. This diversity allows the regional economy to be among the State's growth 
leaders and outpace the national economy. For reporting purposes, the State Comptroller places most of 
the GBRA service area into the Alamo Region. The counties in and around the Cities of San Antonio and 
Austin are the most populous of this area. 

The northern region of the GBRA district is lies between the Austin and San Antonio 
Metropolitan Statistical Areas (MSAs). This location and the vibrant economies of these two cities have 
correspondingly elevated the economy of the northern Guadalupe River Basin over the last several 
decades. Both of these cities are ranked in the top twenty nationally when judged on job growth and this 
will obviously float thc economic possibilities of the surrounding areas of the GBRA district along with 
them. Consistent with the exceptional growth of its larger neighbors, the City of San Marcos has been 
named by Forbes magazine as "America's Next Metropolie. Forbes cites the astounding 37% growth 
rate as the reason for its declaration as well as the recent construction of Amazon's newest distribution 
center in San Marcos. 

Another noteworthy growth factor for the local economy has been the oil and gas exploration 
boom related to the Eagle Ford Shale discovery over the last decade. This formation stretches across 23 
Texas counties and two of those counties, Gonzales and DeWitt, are located in the middle stretch of the 
GBRX district. The impact of this discovery is still evident but due to the drop in global oil prices, the 
$61 billion per year economic impact this discovery has produced in previous years has diminished 
somewhat. Nevertheless, the economic ripple effects can be seen in everything from new housing to new 
commercial developments. Just north of Gonzales and DeWitt Counties lies Guadalupe County. This is 
another county within the GBRA district that is experiencing considerable job growth. In an August 13, 
2013 article of Money Magazine, this job growth is attributed to the construction of several new 
manufacturing and distribution centers including Caterpillar and Continental Automotive which in the 
aggregate have invested $459 million and brought in over 2,000 jobs. Further south in GBRA's district 
lies the City of Victoria. With its location near the Texas Gulf Coast, the Eagle Ford oil discovery, and a 
number of large petrochemical plants within a 30 mile radius, the City of Victoria is an economic 
standout. In fact, according to the Milken Institute's 2014 report entitled "2014 Best Performing Cities: 
Where America's Jobs Are Created and Sustained", the City of Victoria was ranked number three in the 
country. Within an easy commute from Victoria, just south in Calhoun County, Formosa Plastics is in the 
process of expanding its petrochemical plant by more than $1 billion which should further continue the 
area's economic expansion and job growth. 

To continue these results and economic positioning for years into the future, it is GBRA's 
mission and role to assist the area's economy and population growth by providing high quality water and 
wastewater treatment while also developing future water supplies in order to better assure the district's 
continued economic vitality. 

MAJOR INITIATIVES 
For the Year. GBRA's major initiative for Fiscal Year 2016, is the provision of ample water 

resources for the Guadalupe River Basin along with the planning that is necessary to permit, finance, 
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among these possibilities is the development of groundwater from the Carrizo Aquifer in the Gonzales 
County area of GBRA's district. It is incumbent on both GBRA and the regional water planning group 
to continue to study and ultimately implement various water supply projects in order to meet the water 
dernands of the rapidly growing population of the Guadalupe River Basin. 

In addition to the effort focused on future water supply alternatives, GBRA also worked to ensure 
existing water supplies are used efficiently and wisely. GBRA actively worked with water users and local 
governments located within the Basin to educate them on water conservation efforts. GBRA also worked 
closely with the Edwards Aquifer Authority, Guadalupe Basin Coalition, and the Edwards Aquifer 
Recovery Implementation Group to ensure the Edwards aquifer was rnanaged effectively and in 
accordance with state law thereby ensuring adequate springflow into the Guadalupe and San Marcos 
Rivers. 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
Management of GBRA is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control 

structure designed to ensure that the assets of GBRA are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to 
ensure adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The internal 
control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are 
met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the 
benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments 
by management. As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of 
this report as well as the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 46 through 50, GBRA continues 
to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. GBRA recommends readers pay close 
attention to each section of this report including the oversight review provided by the management 
discussion and analysis in order to have a thorough understanding of GBRA, its activities, financial 
position and results of operations. 

In addition to other internal controls, GBRA also maintains budgetary controls. The objective 
of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with contractual provisions and to properly manage 
resources. Since GBRA does not have the power of taxation, there is no appropriated budget or 
encumbrance accounting system nor any legal requirement to include comparative budget to actual 
expenditure statements in this report. Nevertheless, the GBRA staff diligently prepares the Annual Work 
Plan and Budget to assure projects are prioritized and the use of funds is effective and efficient. 

GBRA's fmancial policies and the resulting rates and financial structure provide support to the 
management and decision making of the organization. Since GBRA is not a taxing district, it must rely 
solely upon the service rates that are adopted and the customer revenue that is generated to support 
GBRA's projects and operations. One strategy that GBRA has adopted through the years to mitigate the 
volatility of its revenue stream is to diversify operations. One group of operations are "rate-basecr and 
these operations are structured in such a way that financial gains and losses may result. A second group 
of operations are "contract-basee and these operations are structured to yield an exact cost of service to 
customers with no corresponding financial gain or loss to GBRA. This strategy has allowed GBRA to 
expand its operations through the years, meet its legislative mandate of providing water and wastewater 
services, mitigate financial risk, while still accumulating the fmancial reserves important to any viable 
organization. Another rate strategy that GBRA has employed is the requirement of a debt coverage factor 
on all bond issuances that are of a regional, multi-customer nature. This coverage factor has allowed 
GBRA to expand its financial reserves and position the organization to better assimilate the monetary 
impacts of natural disasters, unscheduled repair projects, and any customer defaults while also providing 
funds for new project start up. These strategies have been particularly useful this past year in dealing 
with the effects of the flood and studies to determine the most appropriate new water supply project. 
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Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis, the schedule of changes in the net pension liability and related ratios, and schedule of 
employer contributions on pages 38-42 and 68-70 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit 
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide 
any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Guadalupe-Blanco River Authority's basic financial statements. The introductory section, other 
supplemental schedules, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. 

The other supplemental schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the other supplemental schedules are fairly 
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 14, 2016, 
on our consideration of Guadalupe-Blanco River Authority's internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Guadalupe-Blanco River Authority's internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 

Certified Public Accountants 
San Antonio, Texas 

December 14, 2016 
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$5,383,066 per year during the period. This has been further manifested in an increase of $4,732,084 in 
Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Unrestricted Investments during the period. The Cash and Unrestricted 
Investment increase is principally reflected in the 2014 — 2016 increase in Other Assets — Investments 
Unrestricted of $5,533,904. Another noteworthy item for the three year period relates to the changing 
pension plan reporting requirements. Starting in 2015, GASB Statement 68 requires that governmental 
organizations recognize in their financial statements any Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability associated 
with a defined benefit pension plan. The net result of this altered accounting includes recording in FY 
2016 and 2015 respectively, a Net Pension Liability of $6,588,043 and $4,320,626. Disclosure 
requirements that further explain GBRA's pension plan and the requirements of GASB 68 are found in 
Footnote C. GBRA emphasizes that despite the financial statement consequences of these altered Pension 
Plan accounting requirements, GBRA's operations and their financial statement impacts has been positive 
over the period herein presented as previously stated. The following table presents a Condensed 
Statement of Net Position for August 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014: 

GUADALUPE-BLANCO RIVER AUTHORITY 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

AUGUST 31, 2016, 2015, AND 2014 

ASSETS 2016 2015 2014 
Current Assets 

Unrestricted Assets $ 	18,577,210 $ 	20,117,330 $ 	19,238,562 
Restricted Assets 10,334,471 6,413,173 8,844,443 

Long-Tenn Assets 
Restricted Assets 2,983,782 3,936,693 1,457,881 
Capital Assets 165,632,254 169,048,256 173,439,744 
Other Assets 20,446,470 15,217,372 18,093,797 

Total Assets 217,974,187 214,732,824 221,074,427 
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 3,834,731 2,323,333 185,270 

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 	221,808,918 $ 	217,056,157 $ 	221,259,697 

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 
CuiTent Liabilities 

Payable from Current Assets $ 	4,140,103 $ 	3,568,271 $ 	3,970,464 
Payable from Restricted Assets 6,412,616 7,299,682 6,627,639 

Long-Term Liabilities 
Bonds and Loans Payable 114,754,269 118,960,641 126,102,151 
Advances for Operations 521,038 417,875 404,415 
Net Pension Liability 6,588,043 4,320,626 . 

Total Liabilites 132,416,069 134,567,095 137,104,669 
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 9,135,357 7,969,798 6,827,070 
NET POSITION 

Net Investments in Capital Assets $ 	45,212,346 $ 	43,492,246 $ 	41,302,982 
Restricted for Debt Service 4,732,175 6,916,028 6,874,088 
Restncted for Insurance 1,300,517 1,184,715 1,173,475 
Unrestricted 29,012,454 22,926,275 27,977,413 
Total Net Position 80,257,492 74,519,264 77,327,958 

Total Liabilites, Deferred Inflows and Net Position $ 	221,808,918 $ 	217,056,157 $ 	221,259,697 

The Total Net Position amount in the above statement is subdivided into an Unrestricted Net Position 
amount, two Restricted Net Positions amounts, and a final amount described as Net Investments in 
Capital Assets. The two restricted Net Position subcornponents include debt service payrnents, and 
insurance reservations. These reserve accounts are explained in more detail in Footnotes A and G. 
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adequate to offset the $3.6M increase in Program Expenses and Interest Expense. While various factors 
caused this result, principal among them was a commitment to increase customer rates when necessary, 
an aggressive plan to control discretionary spending, and the reduction interest expense through the 
amortization and periodic refunding of long-term debt. 

Capital Asset and Long-Term Debt Activity 
As of August 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014 respectively, GBRA's total investment in Long-Term Capital 
Assets net of depreciation were $165,632,254; $169,048,256; and $173,439,744. These capital assets 
which are shown in the long-term asset section of GBRA's Statement of Net Position are comprised of a 
number of different types of assets. Included in this asset type are water rights, dams, canals, water 
treatment plants, wastewater treatment plants, park facilities, hydroelectric plants, pipelines, and electric 
transmission facilities. The amount of capital assets recognized by GBRA declined by 4.5% or 
$7,807,490 during period FY 2014-2016. The principal reason for this asset decrease is the recognition of 
annual depreciation costs on these assets with no corresponding large asset acquisition to offset the 
depreciation. 

GBRA's long-term debt is comprised of outstanding revenue bond issues, bank loans, and a loan from the 
United States Government related to the construction of Canyon Reservoir. The total revenue bonds 
outstanding, exclusive of bond discounts and premiums, as of August 31, 2014, 2015, and 2016 
respectively were $117,000,000; $111,815,000; and $108,465,000. Between Fiscal Years 2014 and 2016, 
revenue bonds outstanding decreased by a net amount of $8,535,000. During FY 2016, GBRA did issue 
$2,000,000 in new revenue bonds to fund new water supply studies however this amount was more than 
offset by the annual principal repayment on existing GBRA bond issues as well as the refunding or 
replacement of other bond issues. 

GBRA's long-term loans outstanding as of fiscal year end 2014, 2015 and 2016 respectively amounted to 
$8,024,267; $7,294,084; and $6,054,591. These varying amounts represent the annual principal 
repayments of the various loans including a lump-sum payment on one loan in GBRA's Rural Utilities 
Division following the payoff of a $2.5M Letter of Credit which was collateral from a developer on a 
wastewatertreatment plant expansion. 

More information on GBRA's capital assets and long-term debt is available in footnotes to the Basic 
Financial Statements. Capital asset information is presented in Footnote E and information about 
GBRA's long-term debt is available in Footnote B. 

Infrastructure 
GBRA recognizes all equipment and infrastructure with an original cost greater than $2,000 and with a 
life exceeding one year as Capital Assets. Since all of GBRA's activity is accounted for in an enterprise 
fund similar to the accounting businesses, GBRA has always recorded the historical cost of Capital Asscts 
and depreciated that cost over the estimated life of the asset. 

The condition of GBRA's infrastructure and capital assets is generally very good. Most of GBRA's 
equipment and infrastructure is generally less than 30 years old, with much of it being less than 20 years 
old. Additionally, this equipment is subject to an ongoing preventive maintenance program. One area of 
concern is the infrastructure within the Guadalupe Valley Hydroelectric System (GV Hydro). This 
system is comprised of six low-head hydroelectric dams, power houses and ancillary equipment all of 
which was originally constructed in the 1920's and 1930s. Due to the age of many of the GV Hydro 
components a major emphasis on repair and replacement will be required in the next few years to return 
this System to the level of equipment condition present in GBRA's other operations. This initiative has 
not heretofore been undertaken due to a lacking of funding in the System. The funding deficiency has 
been the result of the reduction in Hydroelectric Power Sales Revenue because of drought conditions in 4 
out of the last 7 years as well as a general impediment to increased hydroelectric energy charges due to a 
stable wholesale electric market. 
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GUADALUPE-BLANCO RIVER AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

AUGUST 31, 2016 AND 2015 

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 2016 2015 
CURRENT ASSETS 

Unrestricted Assets 
Cash and Cash Equivalents . 	. '. 	8.384,471 $ 	10,567,257 
Investments-Unrestricted 	  7,140,096 6,421,372 
Interest Receivable. 	 87,161 56,565 
Accounts Receivable-Operating 	 2,494,546 2,557,977 
Other Current Assets 	  470,936 514,15,,  

Total Unrestncted Assets ... 18,577,210 20.117,330 
Restricted Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 	 7,643,028 3.937,416 
Investments-Restricted 	  2,655,467 2.445,791 
Interest Receivable . 35.976 29,966 

Total Restricted Assets 	 10.334.471 6,413,173 
Total Current Assets . 28.911.681 26.530.503 

LONG-TERM ASSETS 
Restricted Assets 

investments-Restricted ..... 	....  	... ..... 2_983,782 3,936,693 
Total Restricted Assets .. 	.....  	. 2.983.782 3.936.693 

Capital Assets 
Land, Water and Storage Rights..,, 35,538,587 35.538,587 
Dams. Plants and Equipment...—. 	. . . 	.. 212,374,71 l 211,433,931 
Constmction ln Progress 1,293,941 165,344 
Less Accumulated Depreciation . (8.1.574.985) (78.089.606) 

Total Capital Assets 165,632.254 169.048,250 
Other Assets 

Investments-Unrestricted 13,151.296 10,043,251 
Long-Tenn Lnans Receivable . 136,971 244,054 
Contract Development Costs (Net of Amortization). .... . ,. 	 .. ...... . 1,304 4,277 
Permits and Licenses (Net of Amortization) 	  445,742 469,860 
Project Development Costs 	 6,661,157 4,455,930 
Net Pension Asset - 

Total Other Assets 	  20,446,470 15.217.172 
Total Long-Term Assets  	.. ...... ... 	  189.062.506 188.202.321 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 	 — 	 .. I 814 731 2,323.333 
- 	Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 	........ .. .. .. S 	221,808.918 5 	217.036.157 

LIABILITIES , DEFERRED INFLOWS AND NET POSITION 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Payable from Unrestricted Assets 
Current Portion of Long-Term Loans Payable 	  .. 	350,636 428,745 
Interest Payable 	  45,057 45.981 

Accounts Payable-Operating 3.744,410 30)11,544  

Total Current Unrestricted Liabililie& 	  4.140.103 3,368.271 
Payable from Restricted Assets 

Current Portion of Revenue Bonds 	 5,210,000 5.350,000 
Current Portion of Long-Terrn Loans Payable 105.000 8111,748 
Interest Payable 1,097.616 1,138,934 

fetal Current Restricted Liabilitics. ........ ..... .. ,. .,.. 6.412.616 7,299,682 

Total Cunent 1.iabilities . 10.552.719 10.867,951 
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Revenue Bonds Payable 	 114,365,314 118 250,050 

Long-Term Loans Payable 	  6.054,591 7,294,084 
120,419 905 125.550,134 

Less Current Portion . 	.    	.. (5.665,636 t (6.5)t9.493i 
Total Bonds and Loans Payable 114.754.269 118,961041 

Advances for Operations .. 521,038 417.873 
Net Pension Liability . 	... 	. 	- 6.588.043 4.320.626 

Total Long-Term Liabilities., 	 121.863 130 123.699.142 
Total Liabilities 132.416.069 134.567.095 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 	  9.1.35.357 7,960,798 

NET POSITION 
Net Investments in Capital Assets 	  45,212,346 43,492,246 

Restricted for Insurance 	  1,300,517 1,184 715 

Restricted for Debt Service 	 4,732,175 6,9:6,028 

I Mrestricted . 	 . 	......... 29.012.454 22.926.275 

Total Net Position. .. 80 257.492 74.519.204 

Total I iabilittes, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position 	  	5 	221,808,918 5 	217.056,157 

The decompanytng notes Ore an integral part of this statement. 
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GUADALUPE-BLANCO RIVER AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FISCAL YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31, 2016 AND 2015 
2016 2015 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVMES: 
Cash Received from Customers 	  $ 	50,178,121 $ 	46,671,059 
Cash Received from Interfund Administrative Charges... ... ....... ..... ....- . .............................. 	 2,943,855 2,788,639 
Cash Paid for Personnel Operating Costs 	  (12,257,607) (12,328,695) 
Cash Paid for Other Operating and Maintenance Costs 	 (21,392,487) (19,500,373) 
Cash Paid for Interfund Administrative Charges 	  (2,849,629) (2,683,607) 
Costs Associated with Whooping Crane Endagered Species Lawsuit 	  . (220,901) 

Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities 	  16,622,253 14,726,122 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Cash Received from Grants 	. .. 	. 	. 	  1,531300 591 457 

Net Cash Flows Used by Noncapital and Related Activities 	  1,531,700 891,457 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPTIAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Proceeds from Advances from Customers, Developers, and Other Governmental Units 	 25,833 20,128 
Proceeds from Revenue Bonds arid Loans for Capital Assets and Plant Expansion 	  2,000,000 
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets 	 13,137 25,718 
Purchase of Capital Assets 	  (1,034,202) (1,202,647) 
Cash Paid for Construction in Progress and Project Dovelopmelit 	 (3,333,824) (413,710) 
Interest Paid 	  (4,432,417) (4,585,660) 
Principal Payments on Revenue Bonds 	  (5,906,793) (5,753,075) 
Principal Payments on Loans 	 (1,239,493) (730,183) 

Net Cash Flows Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities 	  (13,907,759) (12,639,429) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Castt Received frOm Investments 	  2,063,649 4,584,338 
Investment Income Received 	  328,916 135,090 
Cash Paid for Investments . (5,115,933) 15.210,6891 

Net Cash Flows Used by Investing Activities 	  (2,723.368) (491.261) 
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 	  1.522.826 2.486,889 

CURRENT CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: 
At Beginning of Year 10,567,257 7,842,917 
At End of Year 	  8.384.471 10,567,257 

Net Increase 	  (2.182,786) 2.724.340 

RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: 
At Beginning of Year 	  3,937,416 4,174,867 
Ar End of Year.. 	,„ 7 641,028 3.937.416 

Net Decrowe 	  1 705 612 (237,451) 

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: 
At Beginning of Year 	  14,504,673 12,017,784 
At End of Year 	  16,027,499 14,504,673 

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 	  S 	1,522,826 2,486,889 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH FLOWS 
FR.OM  OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Operating Income 	  $ 	9,471,835 1 	4,740,609 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash Flows 
From Operating Activities. 

Depreciation and Arnortintinn 	  5,617,403 5,705,554 

Actuarially Determined Net Pension Expense 	  313,330 1,013,949 
Costs Associated with Whooping Crane Endangered Species Lawsuit 	 - (220,901) 

Net Change in Assets aod Liabilities from Operating Activities. 
Operating Accounts Receivable 	  189,036 (242,386) 

Othei Current Assets 	 43,223 (36,679) 

Operating Accounts Payable 	 626,890 450,278 
Net Pension Liability,  	..... ... ........... ....... 	 160,536 (1.684,302) 
Total Adjustments. 	  7,150.418 4,985_513 

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 	  S, 	16.622.253 S 	14,726,1/2 

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS SCHEDULE 
1. Durrng fiscal year 2016 and 2015, au adjustment of $37,281 and ($79,655) respectively, was made to adjust investments to fair value. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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3UADALUPE-BLANCO RIVER AUTHORITY' 

gOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
tUGUST 31, 2016 AND 2015 

16. Capitalization of Interest, lt is GIIRA's policy to capitalize net interest oosts or funds borrowed to finance the construction of capital 
assets. GBRA recorded no interest expense or interest income for construction in progress. 

7. Deferred Expenses/Revenue. Certain utility expenses that du not require funds currently are deferred to such periods as they are 
intended to be recovered in rates diarged to customers. 1.ikewise, certain utility revenue is deferred to such periods in which the casts 
related to that revenue is recognized, Deferred expenses and revenue will be recognized in future years by setting rates sufficient to 
provide funds for the Mated deht service requirements. 

8. Deferred Outflows/Inflows. OBRA adopted the provisions of GASB #63 Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, 
Deferred Inflows of Resourips. and Net Position, l'he statement requires governments to account for deferred outflows of reseurces, 
deferred inflows of resources and net position as they relate to derivatives tind service concession arrangements Under the provisions of 
this statement. gtwernments will already present a Statement Of Net Position and changes the caption "Net Assets" to "Net Positon". 
(BRA has no deferred outflows or inflows of resources as they relate to derivatives and service concession agreements. 

9 Debt Issue Costs, The Authority also adopted the p.rovls11,11b of GASB #65 items previously reported as Assets and hirthildies The GASH 
requires that the Dent issuance costs (except for eny portion that is a prepayment of insurance) should be recognized as an expense in the 
period incurred and rin longer be reported in statements ot net position. The financial statements have been restated to reflect the 
provisions of GASB #65, 

10. Change in Accounting Policy. During fiseal year 2015, GBRA changed accounting po-wies related to reporting of net pension liability, 
deferred outflows of resources, and deferred inflows of resources in a statement af net positam by acifpting GASB Statement No. 68 
"Aczounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions - an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27." 

1OTE B - LONG TERM LIABILITIES 

lBRA currently has $ 114,519,591 of debt outstanding from long-term loans and revenue bonds This is exclusive of defeasance, chscounts and 
remiurns assnciated with these bonds. 
The toans and revenue bonds outstanding at August 31, 2016 mature &erially through 2039 as follows. 

Year 

Ending 
August 31 Total 

LONG:NAM LOANS 

Interest 	Principal 

Balance of 

Principal 
Outstanding Total 

REVENUE BO NIBS 

Interest 	Principal 

Balance of 

Principal 
Outstanding 

56,054,591 608,465,000 
2017 6441654 186,018 455.636 5,598,953 9,823,693 4,6 1 3 .6 9 3 5,210,000 103,255,000 
2018 633,146 172,103 466,043 5,132,912 9,181.225 4,496,225 4,685 000 98,570,000 
2010 039,557 157,775 481,782 4,651,110 9 195,922 4,335,922 4,860 000 93.710,000 
2020 610,524 143.398 467.126 4,184,004 9,191 409 4,146,409 5,045.000 8%,665.000 
202 l 606,633 129.104 477,579 3,706,425 9,193,76-1 3,943,764 i 250,000 83,415,000 
2022 577,114 114,666 462.446 3.243,979 9,197,848 3,727,548 5.470,000 77.945,000 
2023 547,379 101,628 445,751 2,79S,228 9.206,28`... 3,495,286 5 710,000 72.235,000 

2024 548,120 88,531 459,589 2,338,6 i9 9,423,331 3,303,331 6.120,300 66,115.000 
2025 548,o95 75,011 473,684 1,664,955 8,795.322 3 040,522 5.755.000 60,360,000 
2026 549,102 61 057 488,045 1,376,910 8,789,810 2.789 810 6.000,000 54.360.0011 
2C27 240,453 46,664 191.789 1.183,121 8,800,110 2,525,110 6.275,010 48.085,000 
2028 235,610 39.625 195,985 987,116 8,491.979 2,244,979 6,250.030 41,835,00.) 
2029 235.683 32,404 203.219 7839(57 5.482,095 1,962,095 6,520,000 35,315,003 
2030 240,506 24.830 213.67o 568,181 8,070,297 1.665,297 6.405,000 28,910,000 
2031 240.074 16,893 223,181 345,000 7,5611,226 1,380,22o 6,180,09e 22,730,000 
2032 175.684 8,684 170,000 115,000 7 . 3 08,0 8 il 1,093,080 6.215,000 16,515,000 
2033 177,923 2,923 175,000 -- 7.306,538 796,538 6 510,000 10,005,000 

2034 2,465.412 4R5,412 1,001,000 8,025,000 

2035 2,466,137  396,107 2,070,000 5,955,000 

20.36 2,257,206 302,206 1,955,000 4,0011,000 
2037 2,255,979 210,979 2,045,000 1,955,000 

2038 1,065.242 115,242 950,000 1,005,000 

2030  1,064.255 59,255 1,005,300 

S 	7,455,007 $ 	1,401,316 $ 	6,054,591 $159,595,336 $ 	51,130,336 $ 	108,465,000 
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1ALUPE-BLANCO RIVER AUTHORITY 

ES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED 
JST 31, 2016 AND 2015 

; B — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

RA issued in Fiseal Year 2011 “enern1 Improw,ment and Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 201 ). These bonds were issued to retire the 
nem! Imprmiement Revenue Ronds, Series 2002 and to provide funds for the lump sum buy•out of the Water ltight Subordination 
reentent between (IBRA and the City of Seguin. The refunding of the 2002 General Improvement Revenue Bonds produced an economic 
a of $27,473, bin was ries•essary to remove bond covenants in the 2002 bonds to facilitate the new money portion of the bond. GBRA'ç 

an of the Water Right Sobordinatim agreement effectively prodticed a savings uf approximately $4,295,500. Bonds outstanding that 
• considered defeased as a result of the 2011 refunding are 50. 
IRA issued in Fiscal Year 2011 Regional Raw Water Delivery System Contract Revenue Rebinding Bonds, Series 2010 (City of San 
trots isortinn). These bonds were issued to mire the 1998 !minis, except for the September 1. 2010 payment of $340,000. As a result ut 

refunding, GBRA reduced its total debt service requirement by $842,606 and produced a net present value savings (emnomic gain) of 
48,929. Bonds outstanding that are considered defeased as a restilt of the 2011 refunding are $0. 
IRA issued in Fiscal Year 2013 Cmitract Reveue Refunding Bonds (III35 Trented Water Delivery Bonds). Series 2013, These bonds were 
;tied to retire the SPric's 2004 bonds. As a result Of the refunding. MIRA redured its total debt service requirements lav $4.3(17,567 and 
oduced a net pivsent value savings (economic gain) of $2,877,554. Bonds outstanding that are considered defeased as a result of lhe 2013 
fundiug :a IV $0. 

BRA issued it) Fiscal Year 2013 Contract Revenue Refunding &nada (Western Canyon Reginnal Water Supply Projeett. Series :a n31S nod 
Ties 201311. As a result. of the reftmcling, (IBRA mdtweel its total debt }14.I'Vict. requirements by 59,669,581rand produced a net present 
lue savings (economic gain) of $6,741,092. Bonds outstanding that nre considered defrased as a result of the. 2013 refunding Ore $0. 
RRA issed iii Fiscal Year 201 l Water Supply Revenue. Refunding Bonds, Series 2011 (Port Lamien Writer Trentment Plant Project). These 
aids were issued to retire the Series 2000 bonds. As ae result elf the rebinding, GRRA reduced its total dela service requirements by 
l4,l 15 end produced a net present value savings (economic gain) of $39,856. Bonds outstanding t hut are considered defeased as a result a 
le 2011 refunding are $0. 
; URA issenA ill Fi/W111 Year 2014 Treated Writer Delivery System Contrad liVv1.11111. Refunding Bonds. Series 2014 (City of Lockhart 
'roject). These bonds were issued to retire the Series 2004 bonds. As a result of the refunding, MIRA reduced s total debt service 
equirements by 8034.189 rind produced n net prestml value savings (economie gain) of S475,361. Bonds outstnnding that are considered 
lefeased as a result of the 2014 refunding are $0. 
;BRA issued in Fiscal Year 2011 Contraet Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2010 (City o( Lockhart Wastewnter Treatment System 
)roject). These bonds were issued to retire the Series 1996 bonds. As a result of the refunding, GBRA reduced its total debt service 
viltlirements by $248,321 and produced a net present l'alue savings (economic gain) of $220,321. Bonds that are considered defensed as a 
•esult of the current year refunding are $0. 

Iht vnritnis hotid indentures, resolutions and agreements provide for the establishment of separate restricted accounts for debt service. 
.etirement, construct ion, contingencies. etc. These Recounts art• reported as restricted assets in the accompanying financial statements. 
flie bond indentures eontain flow nf funds requirements which generally provide the order in which funds are to be applied. These 
requirements have been met, The following hond indentures of MIRA contain bond covernge re(luirement provisions: 1) (Jeneral 
Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2011; 2) Contract Revenue Bonds (II{351. Series 2013: 3) Combined (ontract Revenue 
Bonds (Western Canyon), Series 2013; 4) Combined Contract Revenue Bonds (RHWDS). Series 2007: 5) RRWDS Contract Revenue 
Refunding Bonds (City of San Marcos), Series 14'010: and 61 Treated Delivery System Contract Revenue Refunding Bonds (City of Lockhart). 
Serio6- 201-1, 
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11.JADALUPE-BLANCO RIVER AUTHORITY 
tOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED 
UGTJST 31, 2016 AND 2015 

(OTE C - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 

Actuarial Assumptions 
The total pension liabraiy in the January 1, 2016 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied 

to all periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation 	 3.50 percent 
Salary increases 	, 3.00 percent, plus merit and promotion increases that vary by age and service 
Investment rate of return 	7 00 percent, net of penston plan investment expense, including inflation 

Mortahty rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortahty Tables for males and fctr females (sex disttnct) projected to 2024 
by sca le AA 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is reviewed annually and was determined using a building-block 
method in which expected fewre net real ral:es of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are 
developed for each major asset class These components are combined to produce the long-terrn expected rate of return by weighting the 
expected future net real rates of return bv the target asset allocation percentage (currently resulting in 4 25%) and by adding expected 
inflation (3.0%) In addition, the fmal 7.0% assumption was selected by "rounding down" and thereby reflects a reditetion of 0.25% for 
adverse deviation. The target allocation and expected arithmetic net real rates of return tor each major ass,et class are summatized in the 
following table: 

Target 
Allocation 

Long-Term 
Expected Net Real 

Rate of Return 
Equities 

1,arge cap domestic 30% 5 65% 
Small cap domestic 7 5.93 
International developed 12 6.05 
Emerging Markets 3 7.60 

Hedge fund of funds 10 2 75 
Real estate 12 3.31 
Fixed income 26 1.96 
Cash 0 0.35 
Total 100% 
Weighted Average 4 25% 

Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7 00%. No projection uf cash flows was used to determine the discount 

rate because the danuarv 1, 2016 actuarial valuation showed that expected contributions would pay the normal cost and amortize the 
unfunded actuarial accruod Ijability (IJAAL) in nine years. That (MAL was based on an actuarial value of assets that was only 8% more 
than the plan fiduciary net position as of December 31, 2016 (localise of the nine-year amortization period of the UAAL, the pension plan's 
fiduciary fist position is expected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive members. 
Therefore, the long-terra expected rate of return on pension plau investments of 7,00% was applied tc all periods of projected benefit 
payments as the discount rate to determine the total perpdon Iìability 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
The follovinng presents the net pension liability of the Employer. calculated using the discount rate of 7.00%, as well as what the 

Employer's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6%) in 1-percentage-
point higher (8%) than the current rate 

1% 	 Current 	 1% 

	

Decrease 	 Discount 	 Increase 
(6%) 	 Rate (7%) 	 (8%)  

Employei's Net Pension Liaii1ity 	$10,350,653 	 10,588,043 	 $3,372,5 l 9 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
The plan fiduciary net positton reported above is the same as reported by the plan. Detailed information about the plan fiducialy net 

position is available in the plan's separately issued audited financial statements, which are reported using the economic resources 
measurement &WM; and the acerual basis of accounting in confurinity with accounting prinespies generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Revenues are recorded when earned, anti expenses ore recorded when a liability is Incurred. regardless of the timing uf the 
related cash flows. Investinents are reported at lair value, the price that would be recognized to sell an asset in an orderly transaction 
leaween market patticipants at t.he measurement date 
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C,LJADAI,UPE-BLANCO RIVER AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED 
AUGUST 31, 2016 AND 2015 

NOTE C - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources re.lated to pensions will be recognized in 
pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended 

August 31 

Net of Deferred 

Outflows Minus 

Deferred Inflows 

2017 1,003,584 
2018 1,003,585 
2019 1.003,585 
2020 740,404 
2021 47404 

Therea fter 0 
Total 3,798,562 

3. Deferred Outflow of Resoources to be Recognized Next Year 

No supplemental contribution was eimtributed subsequonl to tile measurement (late of the net peusion liability, as shown in Section 
III. So there is no deferred outflow of resourses that will be recognized as a reduction in the net pension habilitv in the fiscal year ending 
August 31, 2017. 

NOTE D - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 
The monetary assets of GBRA are held in various forms and ael'OtInts. 'MPS( aSSet$ are described anti presented in the comtaneii 

financial statements in two groups One group is described as "Cash and Cash Equivalents". This group et characterized as having high 
liquidity with little market risk and includes cash, checking accounts, money market accounts and hank time deposits with an oriental 
maturity of less than three months. The second grouP of monetary assets is presented m the financial statements as "Investments". 
Investments are recorded at their fair value as based upon quoted market prtees with the exception of hank certificates of deposit which are 
recorded at their historical cost which approximates fair value. 

1. CASH AND DEPOSITS 
At August. 31, 2016. GBRA held $2,141,147 in restricted and unrestricted cash. Included in this amount was $1,650 of cash on hand and 

the remainder was on deposit at various banks in demand accounts 
CIBRA hank deposits were entirely insured or collateralized with securities held by GBRA's agent in GBIINs name. 

2. INVESTMENTS 
In March 2003 the GASH issued No. 40 "Deposits and Investment Risk Disclosures". which MIRA has implemented. Risk disclosures in 

previous financiti reports (under the provisions of GASB 3) focused only on custodial credit risk. (1ASB 40 not only addresses custodial 
credit risk, but other common areas of investment risk as well (e.g. interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk) 

GBRA customarily invests its funds in certificates of deposit, mortgage backed securities, direct obligations of the United States or money 
market investment funds such as the Texas State Treasury's TexPool Fund and the Tesa, Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System 
(Texas CLASS). GBRA usually holds its investments until maturity. 

Custodial Credit Ihsk:  Investments which insy be purchased pursuant to Texas state law and GBRA's investment policy are direct or 

tmlirect obligations of the United States of Ameriea, any "A" rated obligation of a state of the United States or political subdivision therea 
investment grade repurchase agreements, prime comawrcial paper rated A-1 or P 1. obligations of the Federal National Mortgage 
Association and Governtnent National Mortgage Association, and bank time deposits to the extent collateral is pledged on the amount 
exceeding F(deral Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) coverage. 

Fair Value 

W eighted Average 

Maturity in Months 

Federal Home Loan 13ank $ 	6,998,257 18 07 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage 1,703,655 6.2 

Federal National Mortgage Assn 7,910,681 31 76 

Federal Farm Credit Bank 604.212 27.02 

U. S. Treasury 6,784,660 18 63 

Certificates of Deposit 4,959.244 10.06 

Money Market Funds 6,000,270 1.00 

Texas Class 164,705 1.00 

TexPool 4,691,309 1.00 

Total Investments $ 	39,816,993 14.86 
..... 40=M••••••P• 

1"
_ 1.01,erstaitate  Risk.  GBRAS investment policy calls for maximum final maturity of any operating investments to be 5 years. with at 
_st 50% of all operating investments maturing within 3 years. Bond funds may be Invested with maturites of less thn 5 years. ad a 

'0nstruction funds may be invested in accordance with a construction draw schedule. The weighted average maturities rioted ab 	
i ove arc n 
n 

"*InPliance with this policy. 

53 
	

160 



GUADALUPE-BLANCO RIVER AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED 
AUGUST 31, 2016 AND 2015 

NOTE E — CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year end was as follows: 

Classification 

ASSETS 

Balance 

August 31, 2015 Additions Removals 

Balance 

August 31,2016 

Lin d,W ater & Storage Rights $ 	35,538,587 — $ 	35,538,587 

Cons intetion in Progress 163,344 1,128,597 1,293,941 

Total Assets Not Being Depreciated 35,703,931 1,128,597 36,832,528 

Stmctures & Improvements 191,324,261  67,805 191,392,072 

Specialized Equipment 7,312,897 70,054 7,382,051 

Office Buildings & Communications 2,310,55i 14,268 2,324,819 

Shops & Storeroom 83,673 -- 83,673 

Auto & Heavy Equipnient 4,123,128 335,54-1 (86,194) 4.372,478 

Office Furniture & Equipment 1,469.474 26,672 1,496,146 

Miscellaneous Equipment 4,809,941 519,859 (7,228) 5,122,572 

Total Dam, Plants and Equipment 211,433,931 1,034,202 (93,422) 212.374,111 

Total Capital Assets 247,137,862 2,162,799 (93,422) $ 	249,207,239 

Class ilication 

DEPRECIATION 
Balance 

August 31, 2015 Additions Removals 

Balan ce 

August 31, 2016 

Structures & Improvements (62,707,724) (4,672,513) 'S 	(67,380,237) 

Specialized Equipment (6,284,866) (77,257) (6,362.123) 

Office Buildings & Communications (1,776,931) (42,361) (1,819,292) 

Shops & Storeroom (50,745) (1,815) (52,5601 

Auto & Heavy Equipment (3,079,211) (285,992) 81,650 (3,283,553) 

Office Furniture & Fq uipment (1,300,124) (69,608) (1.369,732) 

Miscellaneous Befuipment (2,890,005) (424,711) 7,228 (3,307,488) 

Total AccuO:ualated Depreciation (78,089,606) $ 	(5,574,257) 88,878 $ 	(83,574,985) 

NET CAPITAL ASSETS 169,048,256 $ 	(3,411,458) S (4,544) $ 	165,632,254 
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GUADALUPE-BLANCO RIVER AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED 
AUGUST 31, 2016 AND 2015 

NOTE H — CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIRMENTS (CONTINUED) 

4, The revenues pledged to repay the debt service requirements of General Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2011, 
General Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2012, and General Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 the are on parity with the pledge 
revenues described as follows: 

'rhe bonds constitute special obligations of GBRA, both principal and interest, payable from and secured by an irrevocable lien on and 
pledge of the "Pledged Revenues and the Pledged Revenues are further pledged to the establishment and maintenance of certain funds 
created in the Resolution authorizing the Bonds. "Pledged Revenues generally consist of the gross revenues received by GBRA from the 
sale or commitment of raw water currently stored in Canyon Reservoir and from other sources of firrn, dependable supplies of water as they 
are acquired and developed in the "Water Supply Systee of GBRNs Water Resources Division. 

GENERAL  I M PROV E.M ENT AND REFUNDING REVENU E BONDS. SERILS:V1.1  
On September 18, 2002, GBRA authonzed the issuance of General Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2002 in the amount of $4,390,000 

with a delivery date of September 27, 2002. The proceeds were used for the expansion and construction of the GBRA headquarters, meeting 
room anci office facilities, and an operations warehouse. 

On November 17, 2010, GBRA authorized the issuance of GBRA tax-exempt revenue bonds to ho used to refund the Series 2002 General 
Improvement Revenue Bonds and provide funds for the lump sum buy-out of the Water Right Subordination Agreement between GBRA and 
the City of Seguin. The resolution was subsequently amended on March 18. 2011 related to the issuance of Guadalupe-Blanco River 
Authority General Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2011 primanly for the purpose of amending the daie by which 
certain proceeds of such bonds must be used to pay the "final paymenC to the City of Seguiti, revising the contniumg disclosure 
requirements to comply with amended Section regulations that became effective December 1, 2010, revising the annual rate covenant, and 
deleting references to the General Division m certain covenants. 

Moody's Investors Service, Inc. assigned an underlying rating on the Bonds of "Aa2". 

GEN KRAL M PROV EM ENT REV EN U E BONDS. SERIbv.,Q12  
On January 18, 2012, GBRA authorized the issuance of General Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2012 in the amount of $4,400,000 

with a delivery date of April 4, 2012. The bonds were sold to the Texas Water Development Board and as such, no rating was required on 
these bonds. The bond proceeds were used to complete a study and feasibility assessment related to a new firm water supply for GBRA 
referred to as the Mid-Basin Project. The Project is invisioned as a conjunctive use project, utilizing both surface and ground water supplies 
within the basin. 

GENERAE  IMP OYEMENT REVENUE I3ONDS SERIES 200 
On October 21, 2015, GBRA authorized the issuance of General Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 in the amount of $2,000,000 

with a delivery date of December 1, 2015. The bonds were sold to the Texas Water Development Board thrutigh the SWIRFT Program and 
as such, no rating was required on these bonds. The bond proceeds were used to fund a feasibility study III connection with the development 
of an integrated water-power project (IWPP Project) along the Texas Gulf Coast to provide a regional solution that would create a new 
source of water supply for the Coastal Bend (Region N) and South Central (Region L) and potentially Central Texas (Region K) regional 
water planning areas, and to pay costs of issuance. 

GENERAL IgPROVEMENT AND REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2011 AND GENERAL IMPROVEMENT REVENUE 
BONDS, SERIES 2012, GENERAL IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2015 - FUND BALANCES AND COVERAGE 

GENERAL IMPROVEMENT AND REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2011 

AND GENERAL IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2012 
2011 Bonds: Average Annual Principal and Interest Requirements, 2016 - 2030 734,632 

2012 Bonds: Average Annual Principal and Interest Requirements, 2016 - 2031 260,119 

2015 Bonds: Average Annual Principal and Interest Requirements, 2024 - 2035 

Total Averagt Annual Principal and Interest Requirements S 	994,751 

Coverage of Average Requirements by Pledged Revenues 13.17 	times 

Coverage of Average Requirements by Net Revenues 4.69 	times 

2011 Bonds: Maximum Principal and Interest Requirements, 2027 S 837,750 

2012 Bonds: Maximum Principal and Interest Requirements, 2028 262,522 

2015 Bonds: Maximum Principal and Interest Requirements, 2032 204,747 

Total Maximum Principal and Interest Requirements 1,305,019 

Coverage of Maximum Requirements by Pledged Revenues 10.04 	times 

Coverage of Maximum Requirements by Net Revenues 3.57 	times 

2011 Bonds: Interest and Sinking Fund Balance $ 68,638 

2012 Bonds: Interest and Sinking Fund Balance $ 18,802 

2015 Bonds: Interest and Sinking Fund Balance . 

Total Interest and Sinking Fund Balance as of August 31, 2016 87,440 

Pledged Revenues for the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2016 13,102,085 

Net Revenues for Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2016 4,660,481 	(3) 

(1) GBRA General Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 will be included into this table in 2024, when debt payments begin. 

(2) Sec "Raw Water Sales" under "Raw Water Sale? table. 

(3) See "Net Revenues" under ''Raw Water Sale? table. 
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GUADALUPE-BLANCO RIVER AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED 
AUGUST 31, 2016 AND 2015 

NOTE H — CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIRMENTS (CONTINUED) 

MAJOR FIRM WATER CUSTOMERS (1,000 ACRE-FEET PER YEAR OR MORE) 

Municipal and Industrial customers account for the majority of the total acre-feet under contract between GBRA and purchasers, and 
purchasers with contracts for 1.000 acre-feet or more per year account for 94.82% of the total acre-feet currently under contracr. For this 
reason, major firm water costumers have been identified as those with contracts for tho sale of firm raw water in the amount of 1,000 or 
more acre-feet per year. Major firm water customers, as well R. smaller customers that are part of a tale regmnal project, fill the fiscal 
year ended August 31, 2016 are shown below. 
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GUADALUPE-BLANCO RIVER AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED 
AUGUST 31, 2016 AND 2015 

NOTE H - CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIRMENTS (CONTINUED) 

5, CONTRACT REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS (WESTERN CANYON mutomi wATER IFJX FROJECTL. SERIES 201m & 2013B 
On February 20, 2013, OBRA authorized the issuance of Combined Contract Revenue Re(unding Bonds, Series 2013A and 2013B in the 

amount of $53,265,000 and $6,830,000, respectively. The proceeds were used to i) refund the Contract Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 (Western 
Canyon Regional Water Supply Project) to achieve debt service net present value savings of $6,741,092, ii) fund a related account in the debt 
service reserve fund surety policies from Assured Guaranty Municipal Corporation and iii) pay issuance costs on the current bonds The 
original proceeds from the Series 2003 bonds were used for the construction and equipping a regional treated surface water supply project to 
serve portions of Comal, Kendall and Bexar Counties, Texas. 

Moody's Investors Service, Inc. ('MoodNi's) and Standard and Poor's Ratmgs Services, a Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC 
business (S&P"), rated the bonds "Aal" and "AA+, respectively 

The bonds constitute special obligations of GBRA payable, both as to principal and interest, and secured soley by a first hen on and pledge 
of the Gross Revenues of GBRA, which primarily are derived from payments made to GBRA under the Water Supply Agreements entered 
into with the Participants in the Western Canyon Regional Water Supply Project. 

WESTERN CANYON REGIONAL WSP - ANNUAL WATER DELIVERY BY PARTICIPANTS 

COMBINED CONTRACT REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS 

(WEST ERN CANYON REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY PROJECTS), SERIES 2013A & 2013B 

In District 
CityotBoerne 

CityofFairOaks 

()BRA - Cordillera 

J o has n Ranch MUD 

Current * 

(Acte -Feet) 

ntirn 	te 

1Acre-reelt 

°et,  t 

tal 

9" , 

94' 
001, 

art 

8 

s 

14o, 

3,611 

1.350 

1,500 

900 

21.49% 

11.01% 

8 93% 

5 36% 
GB RA - Coma] Trace 100 0.60% 
Canyon Lake WS C '2: 2 4 30% 

rat Hilis M ilD 225 75t.1 4,46% 
KeadallWestUtil,tie 2-c 750 4 46% 
Other P arta:Tants )- ;; 40 0 24% 
Future Panic !pants 2:S71  15 34% 

Total In District 3,834 12..800 

Out of District 
SAWS (Jnttial&Additionalt  7 	n 4,000 23131% 

Total Out of District 4,000 

Total 11.200 10000% 6,800 10000% 
INIIIMIN•113=1011111= 

4.nnualWd ter Delivery ts based on vo ntractual co mmitmcats of ear.,h pa r0c Tait 

WESTERN CANYON REGIONAL WSP - SOURCES OF PLEDGED REVENUES 

COMBTNED CONTRACT REVENUE REFUNDTNG BONDS 

(WESTERN CANYON REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY PROJECT), SERIES 2013A & 2013B 

Fiscal Year Ended August 31 

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 

Western Canyon O&M Revenue $ 	3,852,141 $ 	3,737,294- $ 3,460,286 $ 	3,368,656 $ 3,3 73,5 0  1 

Western Canyon Debt Service Revenue 5,334,466 5,285,307 5,306,500 5,791,241 5,837,670 

$ 9,186,607 $ 	9,022,601 $ 8,766,786 $ 	9,159,897 $ 	9,211,261 

Operating Expenses $ 3,229,970 $ 2,548,014 $ 	2,557,111 $ 2,651,498 $ 	2,729.471 

Maintenance & Repair 253.229 285.637 360,449 328,632 280;870 

Administrative & Genci al 155,616 134,416 148,256 150,666 148,472 

Total Operating & Maintenance Expenses $ 	3,638,815 $ 2,968,067 $ 	3,065,816 $ 	3,130,796 $ 	3,158,813 

Net Revenite $ 5,547,792 S 6,054,534 $ 5,700,970 $ 	6,029,101 S 6,052.448 

Debt Serv ice $ 4,835,186 $ 	4,835,186 $ 4,833,965 $ 4,335,965 S 5,320,675 

Debt Service Coverage Factor 1.1474 1.2522 1.1789 1.2467 1.1375 
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Net Revenue 

Debt Service 

Debt Stnv ice Coverage 

$ 	1 407,319 	5 	1,329,049 	$ 	1,375,686 	$ 	1,361,924 

	

1,201,656 	1,197,556 
	

1,203,556 	 982 835 

	

1.171 	 1 11(1 	 1.143 	 1.386 

GUADALUPE-BLANCO RIVER AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED 
AUGUST 31, 2016 AND 2015 

CONTRA(7 RF:VF.Ntlk: ItliniNDING BONDS SERIES  2QIA 
On November 28, 2012, OBRA authorized the issuance of Contract Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013 in the amount of $19,470,000 

Proceeds from the sale of the Bonds were used to 0 refund all of the Combination Contract Revenue, Subordinate Water Resources Diviston 
Revenue, and Surplus Water Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2004A and 2004B and pay issuance costs on the current bonds As a result. of 
the refunding, GBRA reduced its total debt service requmrements by $4,307,567 and produced a rtet present value savings (economic gain) of 
$2,877,554. The original proceeds from I he, Serie:: 2004A and 2004B bonds were used to construrt and eqinp facilities and acquire rights-of-
ways necessary for delivering treated water from a water treatment plant located. in San Marcos. Texas to portions of Hays and Caldwell 
Counties, Texas. 

Moody's Investors Service, Inc ("Moody's") and Standard and Poor's Ratings Services. a Standard & Peor's Financial Services LLC 
busines4 ("S&P"), assigned an underlying rating mi the Bonds of "Al" and "A+" respectively. 

The bonds constitute special obligations of (1131ZA that are secured by a first lien on and pledge of the "Pledged Revenues," whirh 
generally consist of the '`Gross Contract Revenues." received by CBRA from various public and private entities pursuant to certain "Water 
Supply Agreements" related to the delivery of treated water from ji water treatment plant located in San Marcos, Texas to porttuns of Hays 
and Caldwell Counties, Texas through a treated water delivery systeni and the interest income from funds on deposit in the Interest and 
Sinking 1,̀ r,d, the Reserve Fitnd and the Rate Stabilization Fund The Pledged Revenues, are further pledged irrevucably to tne 
isstahhshment arid maintenance of the Interest and Sinking Fund, the Reserve Fund and the Rate Sta'ralization Fund. 

CONTRACT REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2013 (IH35) - DEBT SERVICE PAYABLE BY PA.RTICIPANTS 

CONI RACT REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2013 111135 TREATED WA 1' ER DELIVERY SYSTEM PROJECT) 

Fiscal Year Ended August 31 

2016 	 2015 	 2014 	 2013 

Debt 	 Debt 	 Debt 	 Debt 

Debt Service Component of Gross Contract Revenues MGD Payments 	MOD Payments 	MGD Payments 	MGD Payments 

From City of Beda, Texas 	 1 50 $ .61,523 	1.50 $ 167,523 	1 50 $ 167,523 	1.50 ¶ 167,566 

From City of Kyle, Texas 	 4 86 	542,774 	4.8n 	542,774 	4.86 	542.774 	4.86 	542 915 

From Goforth Special Utility District * 	 2 46 	2 74,990 	1,46 	166,536 	1.38 	146,695 	1.26 	126.450 

From Sunfield Municipal Utilities District * 	 2 48 	276,720 	3.48 	335.174 	3 56 	405,014 	3 tS 	425.393 

From Monarch 	 0 50 	55,841 	0.50 	55.841 	0.50 	55,841 	0 50 	55,856 

rota; Debt Service Commitment & R.eventics 	11 80 $1,317,848 	11.80 $1,317,848 	1 1.80 $1,317,847 	11.80 $1,318,189 

Annual DeW Service Requirements 	 :$1.201,656 
	

51,197.556 	51,203,356 	5 982,835 

Debt Service Coveiage Factor 	 1.0967 
	

1.1004 	 1.3951 	 1 3412 

Sun field MUD's Purchase Commitment ls being incrementally transferred to C5oForth SI 1D, 

IH35 TREATED WATER DELIVERY SYSTEM - HISTORICAL OPERATING STATEMENT 

CONTRACT REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2013 (1H35 TREATED W ATER 1)ELIV17RY sYsrEM PROJECT) 

2016 	 2015 	 2014 	 2013 

	

403,268 	$ 	323,441 	 307,051 	 3113,164 

	

1.317,848 	1,317,848 	1,317,847 	1.318,139 

	

1.1,070 	 3,070 	 8,273 	 16,695 

	

1,735,136 	1,649,359 
	

1,633,173 	1,638,048 

	

247,819 	249.398 	1 	207,127 	 203.279 

	

69,296 	 61,019 	 41.021 	 63.636 

	

10,752 	 9,893 	 9.239 	 9,239 

1H35 O&M Transmission Revenue 

IH35 Debt Revenue 

IH35 Interest Earnings 

Total Revenue 

11135 Operating F.xpenses 

1E135 Maintenance & Repan Expenses 

IH 35 Administrative & General Expenses 

1 (nal Expenses 	 ¶ 	327,867 	$ 	320,310 	$ 	25 7,487 	$ 	276,124 

63 
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GUADALUPE-BLANCO RIVER AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED 
AUGUST 31, 2016 AND 2015 

NOTE 1. - SEGMENT INFO1MA1 [ON, INCLUDING INTEREDND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES 

LIBRA .s comprised Of ten nil) enterprise flind;. These fond pruvitie vare_m: set \flees incl iding raw and tr,ared Water Dapp,v 

iltr;r t reatment and du,plksal water quality monitering, vial1Ing reservmr Operstaan orks anci recreational opportunities„ts wch a. 
hydroelectric generation  f1overnments that use enterprise fonds accounting and reporting standards to report their activities are required 

twesent segment information. A segment is ark identifiable activity reported as or within nn enterprise fund or another stand.alone entity 

that has one or moce bonds outstanding with a revenue st wain pledwd iit smport of that debt, and the activityii externally required n) 

trmintiliA sepak 	•,ccok kri c.5  

\ll op-tating reverrte,, tesol: from eharges for services 
S1'gInt nt informary_n 	Augaisr 2616 is as rellicA,,i 

5,1,1,et 3 -I L.1 	555 

P I ti.r 

/11AQ 

\\J(c.r ',ant 
Liicshìt 

33/WTP 

RLi , NIES. TNTE.74 5 3-- S 	'',35.15` '7A's:,,7,4 IN Nr,ry E osfrj, ‘h, 

Opera...ng P., \ ,5115/1 '4 a '.7 146 $ 	I,1 52.J 1 	• 	1.',  :;',2" 

C.pen.Lir.i.1,,..p.:..ses (:‘',. 	2 	4.,:, . 1 L4 j6,0 it,1 I I 

Dr ris:.: at:', , 	..-._ .5 mjrtnition Fs.is '2,15.,114, I Llf.,13-  , i21 

(11,...di 1. 	, 	05.311`.: 5 ! Ili 3/.. 1.9,332,  144 038 44 ,i. /.21. 7.521. 

15 	 R 	emit j• kii 2Sesi f2,3321,01 ,14.8h3i i3 249, 2108 (2 ilR 141 

(221,3:21, , 82 	'511 ,424,43 k l" to 55") 

C 	Ne,  

ri 	1-,r: ION 

C 34.5 182 S 	1.305.519) 5 112.43 $ 	15,921  5,216,22% 

-..trro-it 	1, t 	1' i ' - ,4:111  5. 	4111 	.02 S4,,c :,-..2 :4 	.1.1., 5/,51.7', 

12.: i76,;.12 2 1, 	45( .t. 	-1— 	'1, 74...g., ,,",....i 3. 1,14 

Oner A, 5, t. 11,1 '') 	H..: l' i 	, 14 14;4 79 q2 , 

s)-75 4  126 2'14 .72 643 527 

Deqrreu ()qtr.)... 	.f.co vrze, 15,150  

1, in 1 D.:LIFT-1 Onifl., as of 

LIM,: 	Llablfille• 

I 	/ng Torn, 

T inal 

.1.171 53 153328,174 2,217 8,a '5 -74 5  S 	326,2134 )), 	i'32p80,3.4 

4 1.5 217, 
2:0 •c5 

41' ,455 

342,/4 5  

5 	)1157 	4, 	, 

	

3, 	,, 

3 71, 

,.. 1 3 	'52 /,‘/N6 

115 hP,140 627,811 4,1,55 (11t, 111,) 	115 122 034,36; 

fit,  

Ne 	Lis% • 	111.2.1. 28 ',I36 IS511454 

Res mei: 1 4, lb 	04) 1,9 2..1- 3' 4 

1 nicoi-ctLd '11 5r9 12' 1.584 1.4 7: fib 	2 

.11Nr-  P 4 t 1,289,c, 1.290 43.142 6771 

;•allwqm.,  n. rt rv,.. 

c 

lo P ositti,n 5 .5) 	72:5 	,34 3 f .,2574 s r29c.00,-, 

; 23.-5 

Apt:,  51. 

Inte. 

Rece.s VAC- 1f 4 15 L5/1. b./. 

is., •••:: 

lA,‘,111 LC, W.AC 

44.1 1./j., 	J .  ' 	).41 

1 	1%111-0m,  

kcte 0,e , 1 1)1.12 461..7.2 iso././11/. 

I ci,.R 	,i Ac.„ 1' ,  1.5 L.: 	I /.1 (649 	ie., tit 	(.11. 

Nun, if' tal r uldn_og ')/111..1 5  

, 1 N:f. 33 L51 

C 1,1,1)1)2 5 28,14 '> 7 5'5  • (f,5 	[()"7 3,530,320 

5iTy lit I 	1.11 	llid 	• r4115 	dents 

ALFto,n i,ít 	t 6.12..al 10,3 4 1(135,) 045 7 -7  

3 	1.1 , r 	, • ` 2,1S? 7 43 89 4,236.611 

Nei b-,:rea5c ?hl 

14e.,•rit tecl i 	;1st% ard C 151, ir,li 	11-n'• 

,, 	, .5 1 2 5414  714 

A,  End n t Yea, .12S 7 	7 ,1,1 417,tol 

Kierc.F.r .1,143,380 15,0111 5"S 

S 1.612,302 $ 
	

28.812 $ 	7,3 7) $ 	468.167) 5 1.5R0,320 
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Required Supplemental Information 



GUADALUPE-BLANCO RIVER AUTHORITY 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
AUGUST 31, 2016 

R. 	Schedule of Employer Contributions for the Last 10 Fiscal Year& 

Plan Year 
Ending 

12/31/2015 
Plan Year 

Ending 12/31/2014 

1. Actuarially determined contribution 1,033,464 $ 	984,302 

2. Contributions in relation to the 
actuarially determined contribution 1,733,464 _MOM 

3. Contribution deficiency (excess) (700,0.00) $ 	(700,000) 

4. Covered payroll 7,565,168 $ 	7,423,408 

5. Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 22.9% 22.7% 

Notes to Schedule: 
Actuarially determined contribution amount for the plan year ending December 31 was calculated in the January 1 actuarial 
valuation one year earlier. Methods and assumptions used to determine the actuarially determined contributions: 

Actuarial cost method 
Amortization method 
Recalculated amortization period 
Asset valuation method 
Inflation 
Salary increases 
Investment rata of return 
Retirement age 
Mortality 

Entry age 
Level percent of payroll, open period 
8 and 10 years, respectively, for years ending in 2015 and 2014 
5-year smoothed market 
3.5% and 3.75%,.respectively, for years ending in 2015 and 2014 
inflation plus merit and promotion increases that vary by age and service 
7.25% and 7.50%, respectively, for years ending in 2015 and 2014 
Rates that vary by age and service 
RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Tables for males and for females 
(sex distinct) projected to 2024 by scale AA 

Until a full 10-year trend is compiled, only available information is shown. 

C. Contributions Reflected in Asset Value as of December 31, 2015 Measurement Date (Applicable for Fiscal Year Ending 
August 31, 2016) 

Month of 
Contribution 
	 Amount 

July 2015 
	

700,000 
December 2015 
	

J.,033,4.64 
Total 
	

1.733.464 

D. Subsequent Contributions Made Prior to Fiscal Year End (August 31, 2016) 

Month of 
Contribution Amount 

N/A 0 
Total 01  

An amount contributed subsequent to the measurement date of the net pension liability would be a deferred 
outflow of resources that would be recognized as a reduction in the net pension liability in the next fiscal year. 
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Other Supplemental Information 
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Calhoun 	 Luling Water 
County Rural 	Coleto 	Treatment 	Canyon 
Water Supply 	Creek 	Plant 	Hydroelectric 	Lockhart 	2011j 	2016 

Division 	Thomson 	Division 	Division 	Di vision 	Eliminations 	Total 

S 	131,288 
160,067  

5,564 
111,990 
86,000 

5,637 

S 	134,583 
- 
- 

379 
116,060 

8.827 

$ 	93,898 
105,076 

5,966 
- 

114,248 
7,187 

$ 	187.642 

162,320 
39,200 
9,880 

$ 	448,212 
- 
- 

57,697 
202,367 

15,755 

$ 

- 
(6 481,053) 

8,384,471 
7,140,096 

87,161 
2,494,546 

470,936 
500.546 279,849 326,375 399.042 724,031 (6.481,053) 18,377,210 

7,706 103,176 . 7,643,02e 
161,601 374.669 2.655 -167 

210 ... 666 35,976 
16,1,517 101,176 375,315 11034,471 

50O.46 279,R3 495,K92 .1102.2114 1.099,366 46.481,0534 28.911,681 

2.983.782 
2 983 782 

51.396 875,292 12- 87 136.881 35,538,587 
2,616,838 '2,091,418 1,392,461 2.553.881 6 797,217 211,374,711 

60,669 .. •. 1 243.941 
(1,884,9251 ( i ,791,090) 49.453,7773 (7,689,2901 (3.)07,178) (83,574,9851 

1343.978 100,322 .1,813,976 4,876,778 1.021,920 163.632,254 

300,518 402,631 13,151,296 
186,971 

1.304 1,304 
445,742 445,742 

6 661,157 
. • • - (7,582,243) 

300,518 402.633 445342 1,304 (7,382,243) 20,446,470 
1,144.496 300,322 5.216.609 5,322,520 3.023,224 (7,582,2431 189,062,506 

-- 16.169 -- -- 3,83.1,731 
S 	1,645.042 S 	5110.17 I S 	5,748,670 S 	5.824.738 S 	4.122,590 (14,063.296) 5, 	221,808,918 

-. 350,636 
.. .. .. __ . 45,057 

50,41) 111,114 106.074 49,141, 640,731 - 3 744,410 
174.050 21(1,343 41,930 16341 69,102 46,481,0531 
230,481 341,657 148,004 66,081 709,833 (6.481,0511 4,140.103 

255,000 S40,000 5,315,000 
12,851 1.097.616 

267,851 640,000 6,412,616 
230.481 341,637 415,835 66,0111 1,349,1133 16.481,053r 10.352,719 

4.462,040 640,000 114,365,.314 
6,054,591 

(7.582.243) 
4,462,940 640.000 (' 582,243) 120,419,905 
1255,0001 (640.000) (5.665.636) 

4,207.940 • • (7,582,243) 114,754.269 
34,805 348,706 521.038 

• • 6 588 043 
4,242.745 348,766 30,412 (7.581243) 121.863.350 

230,481 341,657 4,658.600 414,847 1,380345 (14,0(,3,296) 132.416,069 
• - 5,310328 1,579.280 9.135.357 

843,917 300,322 15(,016 4,876,777 2,311 1 ,920 45,212,346 
-- -- - 1 300,517 
- i 60,307 - 374,669 4,732.115 

570,584 461,3081 569,727 0,777,214) t 1,593,524) 29,012,434 
1,414.561 238,514 1,090,070 99,563 1,163,065 80317,492 

S 	1,645,042 $ 	580,171 $ 	5348,670 S 	5.824,738 S 	4.122,590 S 	(14.061.290 S 	221,808.918 
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Calhoun 	 Luling Water 

County Rural 	Coleto 	Treatment 	Canyon 

Water Supply 	Creek 	 Plant 	Hydroelectric 	Lockhart 

Division 	Division 	Division 	Division 	Division 	Eliminations 	Total 

975,192 

50,120 

115.4111 

S 	 - 	$ 	 • 

	

899,645 	1,340,236 
641,23n 

.. 

01,281 
.. 

	

28.599 	 2 

$ 	340,654 

3.710 

S 
553,174 

1,148,222 

595,521 

$ 

(2,043,855) 

S 	3,980,284 
3o,351,390 

752,100 
4,481,509 

965,329 
312,628. 

3,172.713 
1,110.730 1.661.061 	I .140,238 147,144 2 297  519 (2,943,455) 50.215,953 

339,490 822,478 	 343.275 127,725 444,353 (94,226 ) .2,837.247  
4110,758 270.421, 	 326,281 81,136 715,969 I 7.397,8. 6 
115,025 351.032 	102 461 97,468 362.513 4,01,652 
132,865 134,415 	 8,746 41,359 113,897 (2,849a29) 
59.625 42,164 	135.13" 11.2.745 246.821 5.917,4n. 

1.107 715 1,654.519 	995,300 610,41 ; 1,883.554 12,913,955 i 40,744.118 
3,C15 6,542 	 344.43a 1253.045) 4 3,961 .4;1435  

_ 1,53 . 700 
4 750 11 	 7,893 lnn 1,797 365 520 
4,536 3,792 250 9,594 

. • il 9if.24It . I 223 50) i4,387,174) 
9,2116 ).10 	1156.74I11 iUll (20.0101 0,481,061 

12.7111 10,365 	194,590 (262,745) 193,474 0,990,474 

(4.533) 	(82,153) 2. 	,45  (424.419i i 1.252.2461 

12.301 5,832 	113,43,  (30,5451 5,738,229 

1,402,2613 232.682 	 477,633 2.4 ,o3 ,I91,610 74.519.264 

S 	414.561, S 	234.514 	S 	1,090,070 5 	99.563 $ 	1.1t,3.065 S 90.257,492 
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Port Lavaca 	 Calhoun 	 Luling Water 

Water 	 County Rural 	Coleto 	Treatment 	Canyon 

Treatment 	Water Supply 	Creek 	 Plant 	Hydroelectric 	Lockhart 

Plant Di vision 	Division 	Division 	Division 	Division 	Division 	Ehminations 	Total 

$ 	1 677.302 $ 	1,098,754 $ 	1,665,50 4 5 	1,391,922 S 	405,906 S 	2,326,82 I 5 50,178,121 
... - - - 2.943.855 

(477,8161 (389,490) (9.."2,479) (343,275) (127,725) (444,353) (12.257,607) 
19111,4521 (504,496) i650,867) (498,918) (91.838) (1,033,298) (21,392,48,9 
t 126,0121 110' NI) .--h..L--- (1310S) (87.740) (41359) ,  (1(3.897) 12,849,629) 

a3,002 101.965 51.834 461.983 145.786 735,273 16,622,253 

2 t6 500 23,500 (400 200) 
— — 400,200 

t 216,5003 23,5001 945,000 
(945.0001 

1,531.71.'9 

.. 23,8)• 

- 2,000 C91.; 
" 44  3 '9! _899 13..37 

(5.5)9) 1,17 7361 (12,990; 113,781) (1.034.212 • 
(9,407) (20. i'11 0,125 307; 

-- .. — (2,205,2271 

(14%1611 ,158,946) 122.150) 14,4(2,41 	) 

(305,990) (2.14,496i i 615,000) 
(29.532) ... (1,239.49.3) 

(365,699) (50,752) (9,199) (.103,442) (6(9 032) (13.907,7591 

230,551 2 04: 4.3(13 -- 2,063,60 

958 ' 	541 31 4,658 31.(.1 1,539 328,916 
-- (53.002) 00,129) (13,563) (5,115.933) 

231,509 (48,520) 31 (51,168) 300 (12.024) (2.723.368) 
$ 	28.812 S 	2.693 5 	44,666 $ 	7.373 S 	146,086 S 	74,217 $ S 	1,522.826 

19.064 128.595 89,917 87,103 41,852 373,995 10.867,257 
52,887 131.288 134,583 93,898 1117.642 448112 8,384.471 

33 823 2,693 44,666 0,795 (45.790 74.217 (2,182.78() 

33011 7,128 102.880 3,937,416 
7,706 103,176 7,643,028 

(5,011) 578 296 3.705.612 

24,07.3 128 545 99.917 44 231 144 732 373,995 14,504,673 
32.887 131.288 134.383 101.604 290,818 448,212 16,027,499 

28,812 2.693 S 	44,666 S 	7.373 S 	146,086 S 	74,217 $ 1,522,826 

(n9,332) 3 0.5 /0.13 S 	3.41 9'" 262,0451 ;JP, , 4,473_935 

Z05.834 55,625 42,166 135,137 262,745 246.821 5 f. 7,403 
513,330 

1.39.311 4,461 I 31.684 5k,318 29,3112 189.036 

(i ^01n 
.. 

771, 
— 

369 
— 

1,339 
— 

S71 
— 

2,96' 
— 

43,223 
160.536 

(101.1221 34.0811 4,554 171,1351 86.697 42,222 620,890 

232,334 98.950 47.292 117,045 408.831 321.312 7.150,418 

S 	163.002 S 	101.965 S 	53814 5 	461,983 S 	145.786 S 	735.273 $ $ 	16,622.253 
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GUADALUPE-BLANCO RIVER AUTHORITY 
AMORTIZATION SCHEDULES 

U.S. GOVERNMENT LOAN, CANYON DAM AND RESERVOIR 

YR END AUG 31 PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL 

2017 $ 	241,305 $ 	67,585 $ 	308,890 

2018 247,337 61,553 308,890 

2019 253,521 55,369 308,890 

2020 259,859 49,031 308,890 

2021 266,355 42,535 308,890 

2022 273,014 35,876 308,890 

2023 279,839 29,051 308,890 

2024 286,835 22,055 308,890 

2025 294,006 14,884 308,890 

2026 301,357 7,533 308,890 

$ 	2,703,428 $ 	385,472 $ 	3,088,900 

WATER RESOURCE WATER RIGHT PURCHASE AMORTIZATION SCHEDULE 

YR END AUG 31 

I.ULING FOUNDATION 

PRINCIPAL 

ABNER USSERY TOTAL 

TOTAL REQUIREMENTS PRINCIPAL INTEREST 	TOTAL INTEREST 

2017 5 	19,790 $ 	18,510 $ 	38,300 $ 	11,626 $ 	10,874 $ 	22,500 $ 	60,800 

2018 20,681 17,619 38,300 12,149 10,351 22,500 60,800 

2019 21,612 16,688 38,300 12,696 9,804 22,500 60,800 

2,0217 22,584 15,716 38,300 13,267 9,233 22,500 60,800 

2021 23,600 14,700 38,300 13,864 8,636 22,500 60,800 

2022 24,662 13,638 38,300 14,488 8,012 22,500 60,800 

2023 25,772 12,528 38,300 15,140 7,360 22,500 60,800 

2024 26,932 11,368 38,300 15,822 6,678 22,500 60,800 

2025 28,144 10,156 38,300 16,534 5,966 22,500 60,800 

2026 29,410 8,890 38,300 17,278 5,222 22,500 60,800 

2027 30,734 7,566 38,300 18,055 4,445 22,500 60,800 

2028 32,117 6,183 38,300 18,868 3,632 22,500 60,800 

2029 33,562 4,738 38,300 19,717 2,783 22,500 60,800 

2030 35,072 3,228 38,300 20,604 1,896 22,500 60,800 

2031 36,648 1,647 38,295 21,534 967 22,501 60,796 

$ 	411,320 $ 	163,175 $ 	574,495 $ 	241,642 $ 	95,859 $ 	337,501 $ 	911,996 
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GUADALUPE-BLANCO RIVER AUTHORITY 

AMORTIZATION SCHEDULES 

GENERAL IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2015 
IWPP PROJECTS, SWIRF FUNDS 

YR END AUG 31 PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL 

2017 $ _ $ 	- $ - 

2018 

2019 

2020 - - - 

2021 - - - 

2022 - - - 

2023 - - - 

2024 145,000 58,295 203,295 

2025 145,000 55,267 200,267 

2026 150,000 52,080 202,080 

2027 155,000 48,404 203,404 

2028 160,000 44,294 204,294 

2029 160,000 39,789 199,789 

2030 165,000 35,096 200,096 

2031 170,000 30,075 200,075 

2032 180,000 24,747 204,747 

2033 185,000 18,969 203,969 

2034 190,000 12,916 202,916 

2035 195,000 6,591 201,591 

2,000.000 426.523 2.426,523 

CONTRACT REVENIX REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2013 
11135 TREATED WATER DELIVERY SYSTEM PROJECT 

YR END AIJG 31 PR1NCIPAL INTEREST T'OTA 1 

2017 $ 	565,000 $ 	627,656 1,192,656 

2018 585,000 613,531 1,198,531 

2019 600,000 601,831 1,201,831 

2020 625,000 571,833 1,196,833 

2021 640,000 557,769 1,197,769 

2022 660,000 532,169 1,192,169 

2023 690,000 505,769 1,195,769 

2024 730,000 471,269 1,201,269 

2025 765,000 434,769 1,199,769 

2026 785,000 411,819 1,196,819 

2027 810,000 387,288 1,197,288 

2028 840,000 360,963 1,200,963 

2029 865,000 332,613 1,197,613 

2030 900,000 301,256 1,201,256 

2031 930,000 268,631 1,198,631 

2032 965,000 234,919 1,199,919 

2033 1,000,000 199,938 1,199,938 

2034 1,035,000 163,688 1,198,688 

2035 1,070,000 124,875 1,194,875 

2036 1,110,000 84,750 1,194,750 

2037 1,150,000 43,121 1,193,121 

S 	17,320,000 $ 	7.830.457 25.150.457 
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GUADALUPE-BLANCO RIVER AUTHORITY 
AMORTIzATION SCHEDULES 

YR END AUG 31 

COMBINATION CONTRACT REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2007A & 2007B 
RRWDS PROJECT 

SER/ES 2007A 	 SERIES 2007B 

TOTAL PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL 

2017 $ 	195,000 $ 	402,500 $ 	597,500 $ 	100,000 $ 	370,822 $ 	470,822 $ 	1,068,322 

2018 205,000 392,750 597,750 105,000 363,752 468,752 1,066,502 

2019 215,000 382,500 597,500 110,000 356,328 466,328 1,063,828 

2020 225,000 371,750 596,750 120,000 348,551 468,551 1,065,301 

2021 235,000 360,500 595,500 130,000 340,067 470,067 1,065,567 

2022 250,000 348,750 598,750 135,000 330,876 465,876 1,064,626 

2023 260,000 336,250 596,250 145,000 321,332 466,332 1,062,582 

2024 275,000 323,250 598,250 155,000 311,080 466,080 1,064,330 

2025 285,000 309,500 594,500 170,000 300,122 470,122 1,064,622 

2026 300,000 295,250 595,250 180,000 288,103 468,103 1,063,353 

2027 315,000 280,250 595,250 195,000 275,377 470,377 1,065,627 

2028 330,000 264,500 594,500 205,000 261,590 466,590 1,061,090 

2029 350,000 248,000 598,000 220,000 247,097 467,097 1,065,097 

2030 365,000 230,500 595,500 235,000 231,543 466,543 1,062,043 

2031 385,000 212,250 597,250 255,000 214,928 469,928 1,067,178 

2032 405,000 193,000 598,000 270,000 196,900 466,900 1,064,900 

2033 425,000 172,750 597,750 290,000 177,811 467,811 1,065,561 

2034 445,000 151,500 596,500 310,000 157,308 467,308 1,063,808 

2035 470,000 129,250 599,250 335,000 135,391 470,391 1,069,641 

2036 490,000 105,750 595,750 355,000 111,706 466,706 1,062,456 

2037 515,000 81,250 596,250 380,000 86,608 466,608 1,062,858 

2038 540,000 55,500 595,500 410,000 59,742 469,742 1,065,242 

2039 570,000 28,500 598,500 435,000 30,755 465,755 1,064,255 

$ 	8,050,000 $ 	5,676,000 $ 	13,726,000 5,245,000 S 	5,517.789 S 	10,762,789 $ 	24,488,789 
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Guadalupe Blanco River Authority 
Net Position By Component 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(accrual basis of accounting) 

Piimary government 

an pm 
Fiscal Year 

nu 2013 zpi2 

Net Investment in capital assets $ 45,212,346 $ 43,492,246 $ 41,302,982 $ 36,423,496 $ 35,853,611 
Restricted 6,032,692 8,100,743 8,047,563 4,787,708 5,995,312 
Unrestricted 29.012.454 22,926 275 27.977.413 30.776,556 25.315,195 

Total primary govemment net position S 80,257.492 $ 74.519.264 $ 77327,958 $ 71.987,760 S 67,164,118 

Fiscal Year 

2011 21112 2009 2008 2007 

Primary govemment 
Net investment in capital assets $ 40,790,810 $ 43,235,437 $ 40,582,695 $ 38.715,589 $ 36,361,304 

Restricted 5,386,547 6,521,324 10,715,810 7,978,016 6,221,215 

Unrestricted 18,914.321 15.143.773 10.656.309 11.365.266 10,843.049 

Total primary government net positon $ 65.091,678 5 64.900.534 $ 61,954.814 $ 58.058.871 $ 53,425.568 
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Guadalupe Blanco River Authority 

Operating Revenues by Source 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Year 

Pollution 
and 

industrial 
Financing 

Power 
Sales 

Water 
Sales 

end Lake 
Operations 

Rental, 
Recreation 

and 
Land Use 

Waste 
Water 

Treatment 
Services 

Laboratory 
Services Miscellaneous Total 

2007 	$ • $ 	3,764,212 $ 	24,850,270 $ 	916,797 $ 	6,248,195 $ 	594,524 $ 	2,168,515 $ 	38,542,513 

2008 163,560 3,854,491 30,255,712 973,603 6,271,513 641,059 2,485,501 44,645,439 
2009 3,056,054 31,051,511 932,909 6,683,467 675,585 2,601,689 45,001,215 

2010 4,040,510 31,054,841 927,049 6,107,928 759,958 1,627,413 44,517,699 

2011 • 4,192,271 31,615,931 1,022,746 4,273,817 736,451 1,808,498 43,649,714 
2012 3,979,015 33,081,820 1,111,419 3,556,848 823,466 2,084,089 44,636,657 

2013 3,548,940 34,252,743 1,127,145 3,649,643 800,922 1,686,873 45,066,266 
2014 3,032,418 34,316,750 1,151,892 3,830,673 842,643 4,382.883 47,557,259 

2015 2,914,459 35,235,777 1,140,268 4,070,855 914,476 2,581,332 46,857,167 

2016 • 3,980,284 36,351,390 1,064,728 4,481,509 965,329 3,372,713 50,215,953 
• 

Operating Expenses 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Year 

Personnel 
Operating 

Coats 

Operating 
Supplies 

and 
Services 

Maintenance 
and 

Repairs 

Depreciation 
and 

Amortization 
Special 

Moms (a) Total 

2007 $ 	6,997,620 $ 12,770,894 $ 	4,036,894 $ 	3,060,563 $ 	28,865,971 

2008 9,325,518 13,858,478 4,876,916 5,623,753 33,684,665 

2009 10,014,890 14,371,964 4.539.233 5,577,893 34,503,980 

2010 9,942,404 13,288,880 4,416,585 6,127,100 1,195,792 34,970,761 

2011 9,454,599 13,340,648 4,272,751 6,136,748 1,994,934 35,199,680 

2012 9,679,527 13,291,466 4,071,712 5,847,241 2,970,725 35,860,671 

2013 9,983,897 14,111,633 4,398,941 7,279,816 1,024,963 36,799,250 

2014 10,669,145 14,675,651 4,808,404 6,273,761 239,080 36,666,041 

2015 11,553,310 14,894,444 4,963,250 5,705,554 220,901 37,337,459 

2016 12037,247 17,397,816 4,891,652 5,617,403 40,744,118 

(a) Special Items in FY 2010 through FY 2015 mclude costs associated with the Whooping Crane Endangered Species Lawsuit 

Nonoperatlng Revenue and Expenses 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Year 
Intarest 
Expmise 

investment 
income Grants 

Gain (Loss) 
on Disposal 

of Capital 
Assets Total 

2007 $ (4,199,747) $ 	855,793 $ • $ $ 	(3,343,954) 

2008 (7,046,879) 828,429 (71,940) (6,290,390) 

2009 (7,410,716) 475,308 242,557 (2,704) (6,695,555) 

2010 (7,184,205) 237,079 430,424 16,790 (6,499,912) 

2011 (6,812,918) 288,242 549,534 (1,748,901) (7,724,043) 

2012 (6,684,592) 146,506 563,047 (122,715) (6,097,754) 

2013 (6,711,171) 117,304 681,223 4,560 (5,908,084) 

2014 (5,059,003) 276,151 1,030,613 8,981 (3 743,258) 

2015 (4,553,127) 124,228 891,457 17,392 (3,520,050) 

2016 (4,387,175) 365,520 1,531,700 8,594 (2,481,361) 
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Types of Operating Systems 

Several GBRA operating divisions are segregated into systems to facilitate cost accounting, 
internal control, and rate setting. Each system has one of two types of budgets, either "Budget-
to-Actual" or "Units of Service. Budget-to-Actual systems provide services based on a budget 
approved by the customer and GBRA. During the course of the year, the customer is billed 
based on the annual budget with those billings adjusted to the total actual cost of service at each 
fiscal year end. Unit-of Service budgets are for the other GBRA operations where the customer 
pays for some type of service based on a unit of measure at a rate approved by the GBRA Board 
of Directors. The revenue derived from these customers pays the operating and maintenance, 
debt service, and capital costs of the system. In these systems, revenue is completely dependent 
upon the number of units sold and no customer year-end adjustment is available. The table 
below distinguishes the systems according to the type of operations in which they operate: 

Aludipit-to-Actual OPerations: Principal Customers County 
Northcliffe Wastewater Treatment Plant City of Schertz Guadalupe 
Sunfield Wastewater Treatment Plant unfield MUD #4 Hays 
Singing Hills Wastewater Treatment Plant ity of Bulverde Comal 
Buda Wastewater Treatment Plant ity of Buda Hays 
Port Lavaca Water Treatment Plant ity of Port Lavaca Calhoun 
Coleto Creek Reservoir oleto Creek Power, LP Victorla/Goliad 
uling Water Treatment Plant ities of Luling & Lockhart Caldwell 
anyon Hydroelectric Plant ew Braunfels Utilities Comal 
ockhart Wastewater Reclamation System ity of Lockhart Caldwell 

l.ockhart Water Treatment Plant ity of Lockhart Caldwell 

tinit of etetvicti Opera ons: principal Customers County 
Genert Division GBRA Systems Guadalupe 
Guadalupe Valley Hydroelectric Division Guadalupe Valley Electric Coop. Guadalupe/Gonzales 
Shadow Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant Residential Customers Hays 
Canyon Park Wastewater Reclamation System Residential Customers Coma! 
Dunlap Wastewater Reclamation System Residential Customers Guadalupe 
Springs Hill Wastewater Reclamation System ity of Seguin Guadalupe 
:Water Sales System ommunities, industries, farmers Entire River Basin 
Regional Laboratory System esidential, Industrial, City Customers Entire River Basin 
Calhoun Canal System ort Lavaca Plant,farmers, industries Calhoun 
San Marcos Water Treatment Plant ity of San Marcos Hays 
Western Canyon Division oerne. Bulverde, Fair Oaks, Cordillera Comal/Kendall 
Cordillera Water Treatment Plant fesiciential and Commercial Customers Kendall 
Cordillera Wastewater Treatrnent Plant jResidential and Commercial Customers Kendall 
Comet Trace Water Distribution System jResidential Customers Coma! 
Johnson Ranch Water Distribution System esidential Customers, Public School Comer 
iJohnson Ranch Wastewater Treatment Plant Residential Customers, Public School Coma! 
Calhoun County Rural Water System Residential and Commercial Customers Calhoun 
Coleto Creek Recreation Recreational Customers Victoria/Goliad 
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Guadalupe Blanco River Authority 
Third Party Debt 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Pollution Control and 
Industrial Development Bonds 

Year 
2007 $ 90,890,000 
2008 90,890,000 
2009 90,890,000 
2010 40,890,000 
2011 40,890,000 
2012 40,890,000 
2013 40,890,000 
2014 40,890,000 
2015 40,890,000 
2016 . 40,890,000 

GBRA has assisted industries within the GBRA service area by acting as issuing conduit so that the user of the bond proceeds 

benefited from reduced debt service requirements. Fees to administer this debt are recognized as pollution and industrial 

financing income. In each case, the user of the bond proceeds pledge their credit, bear sole responsibility for all debt service, 

make all payments directly to the trustee and completely indemnify GBRA for any costs incurred. Due to the character of these 

borids, GBRA considers them debts of the third party users rather than debts of GBRA. Therefore, these bonds and the related 
receivables have been excluded from the combined financial statements in order to avoid misrepresenting the nature of the bonds and 

distorting GBRA's statements. The exclusion is in conformity with the Texas State Auditor's Report dated October 6, 1986 for 

Water Districts and River Authorities reporting third party conduit financings. 
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U.S. Census Bureau, Estimate 2013 SOURCE: 

DISTRICT POPULATION BY COUNTY 
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UNEMPLOYMENT RATE 

COUNTY PER CAPITA INCOME 
Kendall 35,991 
Comal 32,736 
Hays 26,662 
Guadalupe 26,233 
Victoria 24,473 
DeWitt 23,281 
Calhoun 22,439 
Refugio 21,936 
Gonzales 20,225 
Caldwell 19,368 

SOURCE: U.S. Census Bureau, 5yr Estimate 

UNEMPLOYMENT 
COUNTY RATE 
Comal 4.4% 
Caldwell 5.0% 
Guadalupe 4.3% 
Calhoun 4.6% 
Victoria 4.0% 
Hays 4.1% 
Kendall 3.9% 
Gonzales 3.5% 
DeWitt 4.1% 
Refugio 3.2% 
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SOURCE: US Dept. of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics as of April 2014 
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COUNTY POPULATION 
Hays 176,026 
Guadalupe 143,183 
Comal 118,480 
Victoria 90,028 
Caldwell 39,232 
Kendall 37,766 
Calhoun 21,806 
DeWitt 20,503 
Gonzales 20,312 
Refugio 7,305 
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FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 

87,252,000 71,381,000 91,070,000 92,377,000 81,818,000 75,749,000 72,753,000 81,715,000 

554,970,000 542,137,000 613,240,000 579,122,000 548,963,000 537,896,000 522,285,000 544,955,000 
677,043,000 634,399,000 675,179,000 664,541,000 684,728,000 630,906,000 638,074,000 654,244,000 
739,501,000 630,210,000 752,918,000 721,578,000 666,194,000 617,275,000 715,451,000 693,981,000 

2,773,635,000 2,685,046,000 3,209,012,000 3,324,085,000 3,449,001,000 3,643,600,000 3,619,286,000 3,627,098,000 
3,669,842,000 3,722,663,000 3,446,937,000 3,640,904,000 3,663,286,000 3,587,600,000 3,302,315,000 3,641,065,000 

273,300,000 339,800,000 331,430,000 376,050,000 363,970,000 479,600,000 426,560,000 435,200,000 
2,184,018 3,059,616 2,291,900 2,709,621 2,085,000 1,719,866 3,306,682 2,041,000 

380,250,000 465,830,000 429,580,000 453,960,000 395,550,000 413,360,000 483,600,000 491,710,000 
168,400,000 239,600,000 195,800,000 186,300,000 186,300.000 199,500,000 239,900,000 229,200,000 

2,209,000,000 2,579,000,000 819,000,000 -- -- -- 
4,720,000 3,246,000 4,930,000 1,750,000 -- -- -- -- 

35,980,000 41,010,000 38,160,000 43,000,000 46,700,000 54,790,000 56,050,000 65,760,000 
-- 2,560,000 9,970,000 19,020,000 23,210,000 43,610,000 41,670,000 36,710,000 

2,153 2,177 2,249 1,917 2,306 1,532 1,074 

1,146,655,0Q 998,991,000 900,513,000 498,819,000 680,145,000 816,222,100 1,224,248,900 1,239,957,000 
2,908,782,000 3,280,168,000 3,336,852,000 4,093,251,000 4,281,180,000 4,295,695,000 4,525,209,000 4,803,160,000 

25,726,200 71,633,300 42,126,000 31,405,400 23,444,900 18,469,500 37,271,300 68,045,400 
2,415,841 17,716,632 7,566,158 1,599 4,256,771 22,657,028 

9 18 19 27 30 23 10 5 

252 254 259 309 320 290 273 285 

2,995 3,204 4,266 4,914 5,403 4,932 4,031 2,214 

12,941 12,393 13,133 14,368 14,983 14,697 13,136 14,514 

725 717 766 985 1,072 1,009 923 990 

2,739 2,776 2,588 2,851 3,080 3,855 3,746 2,697 

15,139 14,465 16,331 17,503 18,377 16,825 17,455 18.417 
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independent Auditor's Report 
In Accordance With Government 
Auditing Standards 



ABIP 
ctFalria, 	Arxxlvibirxw in' AM ,  AL•VI: .W 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Directors 
Guadalupe-Blanco River Authority 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States, the financial statements of the Guadalupe-Blanco River Authority as of and for the years ended August 
31, 201 6 and 2015,   and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Guadalupe-Blanco River 
Authority's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 1 4, 201 6. 

internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Guadalupe-Blanco River Authority's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Guadalupe-Blanco River Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Guadalupe-Blanco River Authority's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, 
in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely 
basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected 
and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. 
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be 
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Guadalupe-Blanco River Authority's financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial 
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, 
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or 
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results 
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This 
report is art integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

271?, 
Certified Public Accountants 
San Antonio, Texas 

December 1 4, 201 6 

103 
1800 Saint tames Place, Suite 100, Houston, Texas 77056 

713-954-2002 Main 713.954.2022 Fax 
www.abipcpa.com  

_ 

4801 Ni-N-1:OUP 410, SUite 725, San Antonio, Texas 78229 

210-341-2581 Main 210.341.2588 Fax 
www.abipcpa.com 	185 
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